
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Rev. Arnold Comer, Summer Hill Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Debra Ensminger, Planning Director 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS 
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 

 
V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: July 19, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
B. Budget Amendments 
C. Contract Amendment between Moore County and Communities in Schools for FY 15-16 

JCPC Grant 
D. New Courthouse Building Capital Project Ordinance 
E. NC Forest Service Contract for FY 17 
F. Amendment to Original Performance Automotive Group, Inc. Contract Dated 4/19/16 
G. Resolution to Declare County-Owned Property Surplus and Convey to Town of Southern 

Pines 
H. Contract for School Nurse Funding Initiative FY 17 
I. Health Department Bad Debt Write-Off 
J. Rejection of Bids for Well 24 Rehabilitation Project 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: HCE Moore II – 
Stage Road (Debra Ensminger) 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 2

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Sheriff – Amendment to Contract with Southern Health Partners (Andy Conway) 
 

B. Sheriff – Amendment to Contract with Aramark Correctional Services (Andy Conway) 
 

C. Public Works – Service Contract for Recycling Services (Chad Beane) 
 

D. Public Works – Contract for Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion 
(Randy Gould) 

 
IX. APPOINTMENTS 

 
A. Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

 
B. Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 Partners Executive Bd., Friday, August 5, 8:00am (Saunders) 
 Partners Full Board, Tuesday, August 9, 8:00am (Saunders & Graham) 
 Airport Authority, Tuesday, August 9, 10:00am (Daeke) 
 Sandhills Center Board, Tuesday, August 9, 7:00pm (Ritter) 
 Pre-agenda Mtg., Wednesday, August 10, 9:00am (Daeke & Picerno) 
 Drug Free Moore County, Thursday, August 11, 8:30am (Ritter) 
 Local Emergency Planning, Thursday, August 11, 11:00am (Ritter) 
 Fire Commission, Thursday, August 11, 6:00pm (Ritter) 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 16, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, August 17, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Transportation Advisory Board, Thursday, August 18, 3:00pm (Picerno) 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, August 23, 8:30am (Saunders) 
 Animal Operations, Thursday, August 25, 6:00pm (Picerno) 
 Pre-agenda Mtg., Wednesday, August 31, 9:00am (Ritter & Picerno) 
 Moore Co. Transportation Comm., Wednesday, August 31, 2:00pm (Daeke) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, July 19, 2016 in 
the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None 
       
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
enter into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 
At 5:30 p.m., the Board continued the meeting in open session.   
 
Mr. Percy Flowers from Red Branch Baptist Church provided the invocation and Department of Aging Director 
Terri Prots led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to pull 
from the agenda an item regarding the funding formula for Sandhills Community College and to add to the 
agenda recognition of the Moore County Transportation Services drivers. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There were no speakers. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.8/2/2016



 2

RECOGNITIONS 
 
Moore County Transportation Services 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger recognized her Moore County Transportation Services staff, many of 
whom were present at the meeting, for receipt of a safety award.  The commissioners offered their 
congratulations and Chairman Picerno said he was proud of how this division had been turned around.  He 
recognized Ms. Ensminger, Administrative Services Officer Lydia Cleveland, and MCTS Manager Tawanna 
Williams for their leadership. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: June 21, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
Budget Amendments 
Digital Learning Invoices 
Tax Releases and Refunds – June 2016 
Revisions to Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance 
Revisions to Bylaws for Local Emergency Planning Committee 
Homeland Security Grant Program MOU for Communications Trailer Upgrade 
Vac Truck Contract 
 
The budget amendments, tax releases/refunds resolutions, amended ordinance, and amended LEPC bylaws are 
hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices A, B, C, and D, respectively. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Legal – Economic Development Incentive Agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland requested the Board call a public hearing regarding a potential economic 
development agreement.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 
the Board voted 5-0 to call for a public hearing on August 16, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. to consider entering into an 
economic development agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC. 

 
Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Pinesage – Solar Collector Facility – continued 
from June 19, 2016 
 
Chairman Picerno reviewed that this item was a public hearing continued from June 19, 2016 regarding a 
request by Pinesage Solar Farm, LLC for a conditional use permit to construct a commercial solar collector 
facility on ParID 00018479 located north of NC HWY 211, owned by McDonald Family Farms. 
 
Ms. Lydia Boesch and Mr. Roy Harvel were sworn in by the Clerk, and those sworn on June 19, 2016 remained 
under oath.  Chairman Picerno reopened the hearing.  Ms. Boesch, a resident of Pinewild, spoke in support of 
the proposed solar project.  Chairman Picerno asked her to clarify whether she was representing Pinewild or 
herself and she said the Pinewild Board had not taken an official position and so she was speaking personally.   
 



 3

Planning Director Debra Ensminger asked the Board enter into the record the Moore County 2013 Land Use 
Plan and at the request of Chairman Picerno she cited Goal 1 of the Plan, to “preserve and protect the ambiance 
and heritage of the County of Moore.”  Vice Chairman Saunders inquired about the zoning of the property 
along Highway 211 and also about the landscaping and landscaping requirements and Ms. Ensminger addressed 
his questions.  Commissioner Graham discussed with Ms. Ensminger the County’s authority if certain 
conditions were not met some years down the road.  Commissioner Ritter commented on the natural screening 
available on this particular property.  Applicant Brian Quinlan reviewed a map of the property and buffer areas.  
There were no further comments. 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-1 
(Saunders, Ritter, Daeke, Graham – for; Picerno – opposed) to approve the conditional use permit to construct 
a commercial solar collector facility on approximately 33.48 acres of an overall approximately 53.06 acres 
parcel (ParID 00018479) located north of NC HWY 211, owned by McDonald Family Farms with the provided 
conditions, as proposed. 
 
Chairman Picerno closed the public hearing.  All documents submitted for the continuation of the hearing are 
hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix E. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Planning: 
 
Acceptance of $100,000 Urgent Repair Program Grant  
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger asked the Board to accept funds from the Urgent Repair Program offered 
by the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, and she reviewed information about the program.  
Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, to accept the $100,000 Urgent 
Repair Program offered to Moore County through the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, to approve the 
budget amendment, and to allow the Chairman to execute the procurement policy, assistance policy, budget 
amendment, and any other subsequent documents related to the implementation of the Urgent Repair Program 
grant.  Chairman Picerno inquired with Ms. Ensminger regarding the selection process for homes chosen for 
repair.  Ms. Ensminger explained that her staff reviewed and ranked the applications.  Chairman Picerno asked 
if the funding source was federal or state and Ms. Ensminger said federal.  The motion carried 4-1 (Graham, 
Daeke, Ritter, Saunders – for; Picerno – opposed).  The budget amendment is hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendix F. 

 
Approval of Building Inspection Services Interlocal Agreements  
 
Ms. Ensminger requested the Board’s approval interlocal agreements for building inspections with the Town of 
Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines, and Village of Pinehurst and she reviewed the background for this request.  
Commissioner Ritter made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, to approve the interlocal agreement for 
building inspection services, a mutual aid agreement, with the Town of Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines, and 
the Village of Pinehurst, and authorize the Chairman to sign.  Vice Chairman Saunders thanked Ms. Ensminger 
for her work on this agreement.  The motion carried 5-0. 
 
 
 
 



 4

Approval of FY 16-17 Community Transportation Program Grant  
 
Ms. Ensminger requested the Board’s approval of the grant agreement for the FY 2016-2017 Community 
Transportation Program.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
the Board voted 5-0 to approve the grant agreement for the FY16-17 Community Transportation Program. 
 
Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between Moore County Transportation Services and Department 
of Aging  
 
Ms. Ensminger asked the Board to approve a memorandum of understanding between Moore County 
Transportation Services and the Department of Aging for transportation services provided to clients of the 
Department.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board 
voted 5-0 to approve the memorandum of understanding between Moore County Transportation Services and 
the Department of Aging. 

 
Social Services: 
 
Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Moore County Transportation Services  
 
Social Services Director John Benton asked the Board to approve a memorandum of understanding between his 
department and Moore County Transportation Services for non-emergency Medicaid transportation.  Upon 
motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the 
renewal of the MOU with Moore County Transportation Services in the amount of $375,000. 

 
Approval of Contract with Sandhills Transportation  
 
Mr. Benton requested the Board’s approval of an amendment to the contract with Sandhills Transportation for 
non-emergency Medicaid transportation.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice 
Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the renewal of the contract with Sandhills Transportation in 
the amount of $30,000. 

 
Approval of Contract with Right Transportation, Inc.  
 
Mr. Benton requested the Board’s approval of the contract with Right Transportation, Inc. for non-emergency 
Medicaid transportation.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 
the Board voted 5-0 to approve the renewal of the contract with Right Transportation, Inc. in the amount of 
$120,000. 

 
Sheriff: 
 
Approval of Contract Amendment for Inmate Food Services  
 
Lt. Bill Flint asked the Board to approve an amendment to the contract with Aramark for inmate food services.  
Vice Chairman Saunders made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, to amend the food services 
contract with Aramark Correctional Services, LLC increasing the not to exceed amount to $269,000 and to 
authorize the Chairman to sign the amended contract.  Chairman Picerno inquired about the average daily 
population of the jail and Lt. Flint said it was currently 160.  Chairman Picerno recalled past comments 
criticizing the size of the detention center and discussed how it would have been inadequate given the current 



 5

inmate population.  Commissioner Ritter asked about an indicated price difference for juvenile meals and Lt. 
Flint explained that state standards mandated four servings of milk per day for juveniles, thus the cost was 
affected to meet that requirement.  The motion to approve the contract amendment carried 5-0. 
 
Tax: 
 
Approval of Settlement Reports for FY 2015-2016  
 
Tax Administrator Gary Briggs presented the tax settlement reports for FY 2015-2016.  Mr. Briggs reported that 
the Tax Department had collected 99.71% of its tax levy for this year, the highest collection rate they could find 
on record.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board 
voted 5-0 to accept the preliminary reports as required by North Carolina General Statute 105-373 and to enter 
the insolvents list into the official minutes of the Board of Commissioners, to accept the settlement report of 
current and delinquent real and personal property taxes for 2015-2016, to accept the minimal tax bill report for 
2015-2016, and by resolution charge the Tax Administrator with the collections of the delinquent real and 
personal property taxes.  The reports and resolution are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by 
attachment as Appendix G. 

 
Charge of FY 2016-2017 Tax Levy  
 
Mr. Briggs requested the Board’s charge to collect taxes for 2016-2017.  Upon motion made by Commissioner 
Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to charge the Tax Administrator with the 
collections of all real, personal, public service company, and motor vehicle taxes for the 2016-2017 levy year, 
and with the collections of all delinquent real, personal, public service company, and motor vehicle taxes.  The 
charge is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix H.  County Manager Wayne 
Vest congratulated Mr. Briggs and his staff on the great job they did. 

 
Public Works: 
 
Approval of Service Contract for Bio-Solids Tipping  
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould requested the Board’s approval of a contract in the amount of $90,000 for 
FY17 for bio-solids tipping.  The contract would have an automatic renewal amount of $92,800 for FY18.  
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
authorize the Chairman to approve a service contract with Chambers Development of North Carolina, Inc. 

 
Approval of Transfer of Former Seven Lakes Well Site #12 Back to Landowner 
 
Mr. Gould asked the Board to approve a well transfer agreement with Mr. Loyd Edwards Auman, as the County 
had discontinued use of the well on this leased well site in 2015.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, 
seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the transfer agreement and authorize the 
Chairman to sign the agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

Public Safety: 
 
Approval of EMS Management and Consultants Contract Amendment  
 
Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips requested the Board’s approval of a contract amendment for the EMS 
Management and Consultants contract.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by 
Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the contract amendment # 1 with EMS Management and 
Consultants and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents upon financial and legal approvals.   

 
Approval of Purchase under FY15 Homeland Security Grant Program  
 
Mr. Phillips asked the Board to approve the purchase of a FORTS – Fold Out Shelter Trailer with grants funds 
the County applied for in conjunction with other Domestic Planning Region 6 counties (Anson, Chatham, 
Scotland, Richmond, Lee, Johnston, Randolph, Montgomery, Harnett, and Wake).  Vice Chairman Saunders 
asked where the trailer would be kept and Mr. Phillips indicated it would be housed at one of the fire/EMS 
stations in the county.  Chairman Picerno asked about the funding source for operational upkeep and County 
Manager Wayne Vest said it was a multi-year grant fund.  Mr. Phillips said there would be no financial impact 
to the County.  Commissioner Ritter asked whether the County would have to supply the staff when the trailer 
was deployed (elsewhere) and Mr. Phillips said no.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded 
by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve Moore County to purchase a FORTS – Fold Out 
Shelter Trailer from Southeastern Emergency Equipment for $87,775 plus tax/title cost and allow the Chairman 
to sign any and all sole source, contracts, and agreements associated with this purchase as approved by the 
County Attorney. 
 
Approval of Richmond County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement  
 
Mr. Phillips requested the Board’s approval of a mutual aid agreement with Richmond County.  Upon motion 
made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the 
resolution approving the mutual aid agreement for disasters and other related emergencies between Richmond 
County and Moore County, and the agreement, and authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  The resolution is 
hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix I. 

 
Approval of Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement  
 
Mr. Phillips requested approval of a statewide mutual aid and assistance agreement with North Carolina 
Emergency Management.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
the Board voted 5-0 to approve the County Manager to sign the memorandum of understanding with North 
Carolina Emergency Management as approved by the County Attorney. 
 
Administration: 
 
Consideration of Solid Waste Ordinance Revisions  
 
County Manager Wayne Vest shared that in trying to enforce the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 
8, Health and Sanitation (specifically, Article IV, Solid Waste), staff had identified the need for more 
specification as to the enforcement agency as well as the need for more due process provisions which would 
allow for an initial contact, possibly without penalty, allow for a minimum/maximum timeframe for citizens to 
take corrective action, and allow for an appeal process.  Mr. Vest reviewed information from a complaint 



 7

received on Baker Road, which prompted this request to possibly revise the ordinance.  Upon motion made by 
Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to direct staff to research, 
review, and recommend revisions to Moore County’s Health and Sanitation Ordinance, Chapter 8, specifically 
Article IV, Solid Waste. 

 
Adoption of Resolution Concerning the Levy of a ¼ Cent County Sales and Use Tax  
 
Mr. Vest presented for the Board’s consideration a resolution calling for an advisory referendum in November 
regarding the Article 46 sales tax, and he provided background information on this item.  Chairman Picerno 
expressed his dismay over the failure of the County’s local bill regarding Article 46.  The bill would have 
restricted proceeds from Article 46 to Moore County Schools' construction needs and would have clarified the 
language on the ballot for voters.  Chairman Picerno was especially disappointed that this outcome was due to 
legislators receiving bad information and not addressing the issue until very little time was left of their session.  
He shared his inclination to send the legislators a bill for $5 million and tell them to fix the County’s schools 
instead of Samarcand.  Chairman Picerno then gave the floor to Commissioner Graham who shared a prepared 
statement on her position to not put Article 46 back on the ballot in November 2016.  She discussed the history 
of this referendum in other counties and also why she felt it pertinent to have the clarified ballot language in 
place prior to holding another referendum.  Commissioner Graham’s statement is hereby incorporated as a part 
of these minutes by attachment as Appendix J.  Vice Chairman Saunders discussed the timeline presented by the 
Board of Education in January for completion of new schools.  He said Moore County would need to borrow a 
significant amount of money to match the Schools’ timeline and discussed citizens’ lack of input if property 
taxes were increased to meet this need.  He said even if the timeline changed, it would still be struggle for the 
County to find the income to service the debt for the new schools proposed.  Vice Chairman Saunders discussed 
also the cost of school construction and implored the Board of Education and Schools staff to look at the 
numbers closely, citing information he found on similar schools built around North Carolina for much less than 
Moore County Schools had estimated.  Commissioner Ritter commented regarding the NC State Education 
Lottery and expressed concern that if Article 46 was passed in Moore County without a legal restriction of the 
proceeds, the money could be spent elsewhere by future boards.  Chairman Picerno concurred that he was not in 
favor of putting the Article 46 advisory referendum on the November 2016 ballot for the reasons stated.  He 
indicated, though, that there was no reason to panic regarding the project costs because no one even knew yet 
how much the first school was going to cost, and he said borrowing money was going to be necessary with or 
without the sales tax.  He said he had a personal commitment from all three of the County’s legislators (Sen. 
Tillman, Rep. Boles, and Rep. McNeill) that the local bill would be passed.  Vice Chairman Saunders stated his 
agreement.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board 
voted 5-0 to not place the Article 46 ¼ cent sales tax on the ballot for the November 2016 election.  
Commissioner Graham then made a motion that the County obtain a finance plan for approval of the Board of 
Commissioners at the earliest possible date to finance the first four schools as requested by the Moore County 
Board of Education.  Regarding this motion, Chairman Picerno suggested it was best to do the budgeting on a 
year by year basis; otherwise, it would just be a big “guesstimate.”  He said the Board had talked at length about 
handling the Schools’ construction funding like it handled funding for the digital learning initiative.  
Commissioner Graham agreed with points made by the Chairman and requested he rephrase the motion 
accordingly.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-
0 to engage Davenport (the County’s financial advisors) to do another study on Schools construction projects 



 8

financing, knowing the sales tax will not be implemented at this time, to see what the County can afford, and to 
include with the Davenport study a 12-month actual cost projection from the Schools.  Commissioner Graham 
stated to Superintendent Dr. Robert Grimesey and Board of Education Chair Bruce Cunningham and Vice Chair 
Ed Dennison, present at the meeting, the commissioners’ commitment to fund the projects. 

 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
Town of Carthage Planning Board ETJ Member 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to 
reappoint Max Muse and Bob Hunt as ETJ members of the Town of Carthage Planning Board for terms 
expiring June 30, 2019. 
 
NCACC Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to appoint 
Vice Chairman Saunders as the voting delegate to the NCACC annual conference to be held August 11-14, 
2016. 
 
Board of Health 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Chairman Picerno, the Board voted 5-0 to reappoint 
Betty Goodridge to the Board of Health for a three-year term expiring July 31, 2019. 
 
Voluntary Agricultural District Board 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
reappoint Sandy Stewart, Matt Wimberly, Tony Chriscoe, Tim Priest, and Harry Huberth to the Voluntary 
Agricultural District Board for three-year terms expiring July 31, 2019. 
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland noted that questions she had regarding the Board Order for the Pinesage solar 
facility discussed earlier in the meeting had been resolved and she asked the Board to go ahead and consider 
approval of the Board Order.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, 
the Board approved the Board Order for Pinesage. 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest asked the Board to consider dates for a work session, perhaps between the two 
September regular meetings.  Chairman Picerno suggested September 8th and asked the commissioners to check 
their schedules to confirm this would be an acceptable date. 
 
Mr. Vest reported that this was the 24th year in a row that the County’s tax collections had been at 99% or 
greater. 
 



 9

Mr. Vest welcomed County Attorney Misty Leland back her from recent maternity leave and said the County 
was blessed to have her for 11 years.  He thanked attorney Doug Gill for filling in for Ms. Leland in her 
absence. 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 

Chairman Picerno spoke highly of Tax Department employees and Moore County taxpayers regarding the 
County’s long-running 99+% collection rate. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
come out of closed session and seal the minutes.   
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner 
Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the July 19, 2016 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
        __________________________________________ 
        Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.

















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.







clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.







  Agenda Item:    
         Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Caroline Xiong, Chief Finance Officer   
 
DATE:  August 2, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: NC Forest Service Contract for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
PRESENTER: Caroline Xiong, Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the attached contract with the NC Forest Service for fiscal year 2016-2017. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The NC Forest Service is a division of the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services.  By statute, the NC Forest Service is authorized to control forest fires, protect forests from 
pests and disease, and develop and improve forested areas.  In order to receive these services, each 
county is required to “contribute at least 25% of the total cost of the forestry program” to operate in 
the county.  (N.C. Gen. Stat. § 106-898). 
 
In fiscal year 2015-2016, the total budget for the NC Forest Service to operate in Moore County was 
$394,147.  Moore County contributed $157,659 towards that amount, which was 40% of the total 
budget.  The State of North Carolina budgeted $236,488, which was 60% of the total budget. 
 
The NC Forest Service is requesting that the County agree to a continued budget of $394,147 for 
fiscal year 2016-2017 and that the County again contribute $157,659 to the budgeted amount. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
$157,659 for forestry services within the County of Moore. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the attached agreement between the County of Moore and the State of 
North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services and authorize the Chairman to 
sign the same. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Agreement for the Protection, Development, and Improvement of Forest Lands in Moore 
County, North Carolina 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.











  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:        
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Kevin Fleece, Captain, Moore County Sheriff’s Office   
 
DATE:  July 21, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Approval of amendment to original Performance Automotive Group, Inc. 

Contract dated April 19, 2016.  
 
PRESENTER: Kevin Fleece  
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve amendment to original approved contract dated April 19, 2016 between County Of Moore 
and Performance Automotive Group, Inc. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

On April 19, 2016 the Board of Commissioners approved the contract to purchase five 2016 White 
Dodge Durango SSV with specifications on state bid contract from Performance Automotive Group, 
Inc. to be delivered on or before August 30, 2016. Dodge stopped production of the 2016 model and 
will start building the 2017 model Dodge Durango SSV this month. We are seeking approval of the 
amendment to receive five 2017 White Dodge Durango SSV with same specifications on state bid 
contract for the same price as earlier agreed upon of $151,315. The delivery date will need to be 
extended due to the new production to October 31, 2016. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

Approve the amendment to purchase the five 2017 White Durango SSV 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

There will be no cost difference to the County to receive the 2017 Durango SSV instead of the 2016 
model. The original approved contract dated April 19, 2016 used funds that were available in the 
Vehicle Purchase account and those funds have been carried forward to fiscal year 2017. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to… Approve the amendment to the Performance Automotive Group, Inc. contract 
and authorize the Chairman to sign the amendment. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
     Amendment to original contract between the County and Performance Automotive Group, Inc. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.F.8/2/2016



FN 16-0160a 

COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 1 (this “Amendment”), is made this 2nd day of August, 2016, between the 
County of Moore (the “County”) and Performance Automotive Group, Inc. (the “Seller”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Seller previously executed an agreement on April 19, 2016 (the “Original 
Agreement”), which was for purchase of five 2016 Dodge Durango Special Service Vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Seller has informed the County that it can no longer acquire 2016 model vehicles and is 
willing to provide 2017 models no later than October 31, 2016, under the same terms and conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Seller has informed the County that the Trailer Tow Group IV option was included in the 
quoted priced, but was not included in the vehicle specifications within the purchase contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County intended to acquire the Trailer Tow Group IV option on the vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor now desire to amend the Original Agreement to provide for 2017 
model vehicles, which will be provided on or before October 31, 2016, and to include the towing option 
among the vehicle specifications. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Within the Original Agreement and the attachments thereto, any reference to “2016 Dodge 

Durango” will be amended to read “2017 Dodge Durango.” 
 

2. The first sentence of Section 2 of the Original Agreement will be amended to read, “The Seller 
will deliver the Goods covered by this Contract to the County on or before October 31, 2016.” 
 

3. Subsection 22 will be added to Attachment 1, Section B, and will read, “Trailer Tow Group IV.” 
 

4. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Original Agreement will remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 1 to 
be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Amendment is effective as of the date first 
written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE 
  GROUP, INC. 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of County Commissioners  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
  
Finance Officer 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Kevin Fleece, Captain, Moore County Sheriff’s Office   
 
DATE:  July 21, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Resolution to declare County owned property surplus and to convey said 

items to the Town of Southern Pines   
 
PRESENTER: Frank Rodriguez, Chief Deputy 
 
 
REQUEST:   
 
We are respectfully requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve the attached Resolution 
conveying approximately several pieces of surplus law enforcement equipment to the Town of 
Southern Pines. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The Sheriff’s Office has surplus Ford Crown Victoria equipment consoles, lights and accessories that 
are specific to the Ford Crown Victoria.  Ford has stopped manufacturing Crown Victoria police cars 
so we no longer have a need for this equipment.  The Town of Southern Pines has requested that we 
donate to their police department two (2) Ford Crown Victoria equipment consoles, two (2) 
emergency bar lights, three (3) PA 300’s with speakers, three (3) BR 960 light control boxes and one 
(1) light stick as described in Exhibit 1 of this resolution.    
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

If approved, the Southern Pines Police Department will remove the described surplus equipment from 
the Sheriff’s Office old Ford Crown Victoria cars at no cost to the County.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

The County would save approximately $200 by having the Southern Pines Police Department remove 
the equipment described in this resolution from the vehicles in order for the vehicles to be sold by the 
County.  The value of the surplus property donated to the Town of Southern Pines would be less than 
$500.00.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
The Sheriff’s recommendation is for Board to approve this resolution and the donation of the 
equipment described in this resolution to the Town of Southern Pines. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.G.



The motion is for the Board of Commissioners to approve the Resolution declaring the County 
property described in Exhibit 1 as surplus property, the donation of this equipment to the Town of 
Southern Pines and to authorize the Chairman to sign this resolution. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution with exhibit 1 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN COUNTY-OWNED PERSONAL PROPERTY AS 
SURPLUS AND CONVEYING SAID PROPERTY TO THE TOWN OF SOUTHERN PINES 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Moore, on behalf of the Moore County Sheriff’s Office, presently owns 
used vehicle consoles, light bars and accessories, which are surplus, as they are only compatible with 
Ford Crown Victoria patrol cars formerly used by the Sheriff’s Office (the “Surplus 
Equipment”), a list of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the County purchased new consoles, light bars and accessories for Dodge Chargers, 
which comprises the County’s current fleet of Sheriff’s Office patrol cars; and 
 
WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 153A-176 permits the County to “dispose of real or personal property 
belonging to it according to the procedures prescribed in Chapter 160A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A-274(b) permits the County to, “upon such terms and conditions as it 
deems wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell to, or purchase 
from any other governmental unit any interest in real or personal property;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Police Department of the Town of Southern Pines would like to acquire the Surplus 
Equipment, as they currently do not have enough to outfit their Ford Crown Victoria patrol cars. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Moore County Board of Commissioners declares the 
property described in Exhibit 1 as surplus. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Moore County Board of Commissioners authorizes the 
conveyance of the Surplus Equipment, as provided for in Exhibit 1, to the Town of Southern Pines, 
North Carolina. 
 
Adopted this 2nd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
 

  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 

 



EXHIBIT 1 

List of Surplus Equipment 
 
 

Quantity Item 
2 Ford Crown Victoria vehicle consoles in fair to poor condition 
2 Ford Crown Victoria vehicle light bars in fair to poor condition 
3 PA 300’s with speakers 
3 BR 960 light control boxes 
1 Light Stick 

 
 



            Agenda Item:         
                   Meeting Date: 2 August 16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Moore County Health Department   
 
DATE: July 18, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Moore County Contract for School Nurse Funding Initiative FY 17 
 
PRESENTER: Robert R. Wittmann, MPH 
 
REQUEST: The Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve and authorize the Chairman 
of the Moore County Commissioners to sign the attached School Nurse Funding Initiative Contract 
for FY 17 in the amount of $50,000.   
 
BACKGROUND: The attached contract is for $50,000 thus requiring Board of Commissioner 
approval. The funding designated for the attached contract was approved by the Moore County 
Board of Commissioners at their April 19, 2016 meeting and is included in the FY 17 Health 
Department Budget under revenue as a grant. The attached contract has been reviewed and 
approved by the Moore County Attorney’s Office and pre audited by Moore County Finance. 
 
 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Upon approval by the Moore County Board of Commissioners, 
the Health Director will work with Moore County and Moore County Schools staff to take the 
necessary steps to implement the enclosed contract.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: There will be no additional local funds required. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:   
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: The School Nurse Funding Initiative Contract for FY 17. 
Note, included in the contract as an attachment is the Division of Public Health Agreement 
Addendum with the County of Moore for FY 16-17.  
 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.H.



 

FN 16-0171 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 

 

Contract for School Nursing Funds between the County of Moore and  

Moore County Schools for the 2016 - 2017 School Year 

 
 

This Contract is entered into the 1st day of July between the County of Moore (the “County”) and 
Moore County Schools (“MCS”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, both the County and MCS mutually agree that the purpose of providing school 

nursing services is to promote the optimal health and well-being of all students in Moore County 
schools, and 

 
WHEREAS, both the County and MCS mutually agree that the long-term purpose of these funds 

is to provide full-time nursing services to each school in the system, and 
 
WHEREAS, both the County and the MCS mutually agree that the School Nurse Funding 

Initiative (SNFI) enacted by the General Assembly is a useful step toward the goal of having a nurse 
to student ratio that meets the nation and state recommendation of 1:750, and 

 
WHEREAS, both the County and MCS mutually agree to continue providing school nursing 

services as specified in the annually developed “Memorandum of Agreement between the Moore 
County Health Department and the Moore County Schools;” 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the following mutual covenants and 

conditions and any sums to be paid, the County and MCS agree as follows: 
 

A. The County agrees: 

 

1. To provide funds not to exceed $50,000.00 to MCS for the purpose of supporting one 10-
month nationally certified school nurse or registered nurse working toward certification who 
will provide school nursing services for MCS during the 2016-2017 school year. 
 

2. That funds will be paid by the County to MCS within 30 days of receipt of each monthly 
invoice.  Any adjustments to the invoice will be taken into account in the next succeeding 
invoice or as soon thereafter as reasonably practical. 
 

B. MCS agrees: 

 

1. To utilize the funds provided by the County for the purpose of supporting one 10-month 
nationally certified school nurse or registered nurse working toward certification who will 
provide school nursing services for MCS during the 2016-2017 school year. 
 



 

FN 16-0171 Page 2 of 14 

2. That it assures that the funds provided by the County will not be used to supplant existing 
federal, State, or local funds supporting school nurse positions.  Communities will maintain 
current level of effort and funding for school nurses.  Further, MCS assures that school 
nurses will be allowed to participate in required trainings. 

 
3. To comply with and perform all requirements and obligations of the County and the Moore 

County Health Department as provided for in Attachment 1.  Any information that is 
provided to the Division of Public Health will also be provided to the Director of the Moore 
County Health Department. 
 

4. To provide a detailed budget to the Director of the Moore County Health Department by 
August 15, 2015, which will supply the relevant information as provided for in Attachment 
II, which is incorporated by reference. 
 

5. That it will be solely responsible for any funds spent in excess of $50,000.00 or for funds 
spent in such a manner as not to comply with the requirements provided for within the School 
Nurse Funding Initiative Agreement for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 between the County and the 
North Carolina Division of Public Health, which is attached to this Contract as Attachment 1 
and incorporated by reference. 
 

6. That the funds may only be used for personnel costs (salary and fringe); however, if funds are 
available after covering salary and fringe benefits for the position, then up to $750.00 may be 
spent towards continuing education costs. 
 

7. To submit monthly invoices to the Director of the Moore County Health Department that 
specifies personnel costs and other allowable costs.   
 

8. To provide adequate space, computer equipment and supplies for the designated position 
through other funds at a level comparable to the support provided to all school nurses 
supported by MCS. 
 

9. To inform the Director of the Moore County Health Department of the employment of the 
nurse, and in the event of termination, whether voluntary or involuntary, and the date of 
termination within 4 working days of such action. 
 

10. To maintain documentation that the nurse employed under this contract is and remains 
current in his or her licensure as a Registered Nurse in good standing with the North Carolina 
Board of Nursing. 
 

11. That the County is not responsible for the negligent acts of any MCS employee or agent that 
provides services under the terms of this Contract. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed 

by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 



 

FN 16-0171 Page 3 of 14 

COUNTY OF MOORE ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  Laura M. Williams 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE (COUNTY OF MOORE) 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 
 
 
MOORE COUNTY SCHOOLS  ATTEST: 
 

 

    
By:   By:   
Title:   Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE (MOORE COUNTY SCHOOLS) 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 
 



ATTACHMENT I 

FN 16-0171 Page 4 of 14 

 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH AGREEMENT ADDENDUM 

 

WITH THE COUNTY OF MOORE FOR FY 16-17 

 

[SEE THE FOLLOWING 9 PAGES]





















ATTACHMENT II 

FN 16-0171 Page 14 of 14 

SNFI Budget 
 

I. Salaries 

 
Position 

Title 

Name Annual 

Salary 

Type 

Position 

Amount 

Paid by 

MCS 

Amount 

Paid by 

State 

Contract 

School Nurse   10-Month   
Total Salary Paid by Contract  

 
The total of salary and fringe paid by this Contract may not exceed $50,000.00. 
 
II. Fringe 

 
Position 

Title 

Name Type Rate (%) Amount 

Paid by 

MCS 

Amount 

Paid by 

State 

Contract 

School Nurse  Retirement    
 FICA    

Medical    
Other    

Total Fringe Paid by Contract  

 
Fringe amounts may change due to longevity or other factors that the employee may be eligible for during 
the school year.  The total of salary and fringe paid by this Contract may not exceed $50,000.00. 
 
III. Other Allowable Costs 

 
Travel     

In-State  Total Miles Cost Per Mile Total Cost 

In-State Mileage     
  Number of Nights Cost Per Night Total Cost 

In-State Lodging     
 # of Breakfasts # of Lunches # of Dinners Total Cost 

State funded 
Meals, In-State 

    

Conference 
Registration 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
If no funds are available after covering salary and fringe benefits for the position, leave Other Allowable 
Costs at $0.00.  If funds are available, then Other Allowable Costs are limited to $750.00.  See the Scope 
of Work for Allowable Costs. 



Agenda Item:   
       Meeting Date: 2 August 16  
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:        Robert R. Wittmann, Health Director 
                     and Secretary to the Board of Health    
 
DATE:        July 25, 2016 
   
SUBJECT: Health Department Bad Debt Write-Off  
 
PRESENTER: Robert R. Wittmann, Health Director 
 
REQUEST: That the Moore County Board of Commissioners approves the Moore County 
Health Department’s Bad Debt Write-Off for July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 in the amount 
of $1,142.34; see attached Memorandum.  
{What action are you asking for?}  

 
BACKGROUND: Health Department Fee for Services Policy provides that an account is 
deemed uncollectible when there has been no activity on the account for more than twelve (12) 
months; and further provides that an itemized list of such uncollectible outstanding balances 
shall be created at the end of the fiscal year for the Health Director’s review; and further 
provides that all outstanding balances of less than fifty dollars ($50.00)  may be written off with 
the approval of the Health Director, Board of Health, and County Commissioners. 
 {Research and justification of proposal and need; Alternatives evaluated; Legal Basis; Outcome – What will be achieved and 
how will it be measured?} 
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  Upon approval by the Moore County Board of Commissioners, 
the Moore County Health Department and Moore County Finance Office will write off the 
approved debt. 
{How and when staff will undertake the action?} 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: Since the debt is deemed uncollectible, there will be 
no additional financial impact.  
{What is the cost? /Where is the money coming from? / Optional or mandated?} 

  
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  Adopt a motion to approve the Bad Debt Write-Off in 
the amount of $1,142.34 as recommended by the Moore County Board of Health. 
  
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: Bad Debt write-Off Memorandum dated 1 July 16 and The 
Moore County Board of Health Bad Debt Write-Off Motion dated July 12, 2016.   
 
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.I.



MEMORANDUM

To:  Robert Wittmann, Health Dept. Director

From: Jeanie Garcia, Billing Department

Date: 1-Jul-16

Re: Bad Debt Write –Off (Accounts with no activity for a period of one year with a balance 
of $50.00 or less)

Below is a listing of programs with no activity from July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2016.
  

     Write - Off

           1) Adult Health 24.00$                

2) Child Health -$                    

3) Family Planning 997.36$              

4) Immunization 30.00$                

5) Maternity 49.80$                

6) Other Services 23.00$                

7) TB 18.18$                

   Grand Total = 1,142.34$          

Total Amount Per Program

Total amount requested to be written off as Bad Debt for the Moore County Health 

Department July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2016 is $1,142.34.   Bad Dept in excess of 

$50.00 is submitted quarterly to the state for the Debt Set-Off Program.                      

 
 





  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  08/02/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director        
 
DATE:  July 26, 2016    
 
SUBJECT:  Well 24 Rehabilitation Project  
 
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE 
 
 
REQUEST:  
Reject all bids for the Well 24 Rehabilitation Project 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Bids were received for the Well 24 Rehabilitation Project on May 17, 2016.  Two (2) bids were 
received with A.C. Schultes of Carolina Inc. being the low bidder at $96,625.00.  The project 
included the construction of chemical storage and feed systems needed to produce potable water.  
The well house was oversized to accommodate these chemical systems.  The well yield was 
determined to be 55 GPM (gallons per minute). 
 
Since the well had been stagnant for some time, a drawdown test was performed.  All water quality 
parameters met drinking water standards after 24 hours of pumping, but a hint of odor was detected.  
As a precautionary measure we recommend blending the Well 24 water with the water from the 
nearby Wells 23 and 11, whose yields are 75 GPM and 100 GPM respectively.  The well house at 
Well 24 will be reduced in size and the project rebid. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Redesign the project to remove the chemical facilities and reduce the size of the well house 
accordingly. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Future bid results will be brought to the Board for award and approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to reject all bids for the Well 24 Rehabilitation Project. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation Sheet       
 
 
 
I:PublicWorks/Water/Wells/Well24/AgendaItems/BoardMemo080216 
 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.J.



VENDOR TOTAL PRICE
A.C. Schultes of Carolina Inc. $96,625.00
Mizelle Construction Services Inc. $144,900.00

PINEHURST WELL #24 REHAB ILITATION
INFORMAL BID 2016-07

BID TABULATION
BID OPENING MAY 17, 2016



“HCE Moore II” – Call To – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report  
 

Agenda Item: _____ 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  July 8, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Call to Public Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit Request:  
 Solar Collector Facility (“HCE Moore II” – Stage Road) 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
This is a request to call for a public hearing on August 16, 2016 at 5:30pm for the following 
request: HCE Moore II, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on ParID 00005347 located at 415 Stage Road. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• Planning staff contacted the Town of Carthage due to the close proximity of the property 
to the Town’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ). The Town Clerk, Karen O’Hara stated 
the Town has no concerns regarding the request.  

• Current land use – There is currently one vacant stick built dwelling and two large metal 
storage containers within the project area (all 3 buildings will be removed as illustrated 
on the site plan). The use outside of the project area is agriculture (crops). 

• Adjacent land uses – Include single family homes and agriculture (crops). 
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Call for a public hearing on August 16, 2016 at 5:30pm. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT  
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2015-2016 budget.   
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board met on June 2, 2016 and recommended denial on a 4-2 vote. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing on August 16, 2016 at 5:30pm for the following 
request: HCE Moore II, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on ParID 00005347 located at 415 Stage Road. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS 

• Submitted Site Plan 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.



20' ROAD

20
' R

OA
D

STAGE ROAD

STAGE ROAD

10
0'

150' x 150'
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
AREA

20' ROAD

20' ROAD

10'

40'

10'

40'

10'

40'

48
3'-

8"

12
9'-

5"

280'-4"

372'-1"

245'-2"

171'-3"

608'-8"
112'-2"

136'-6"

316'-5"

26
9'-

6"

46
3'

28
0'-

4"

1033'-2"

10
0'

118'-1"

20' ROAD

150'

15
0'

243'-5"
53'-4"

52'-6"

57'-3"

31'-11"

68'-9"

50
'-8

"

60
' R

OW

60
' R

OW

60
' R

OW

84'-1"

·

·

·
·
·

21' 3"

2'

8'

63
'

6'-
6"

20
°

ESA MANAGEMENT

SERVICES, PLLC

4150 St. Johns Parkway, Suite 1000
Sanford, FL 32771  USA

407.268.6455 tel  |  800.755.0801 fax
Lic: NC# P-1522

SCALE 1/50'

SCALE 1/250'

SCALE 1/200'

4.996 MWac PV SYSTEM:

Number of Modules: 22,534
Peak Power: 6,985,540 Wp DC
Number of Inverters: 3 SMA  SC1850
Parcel Total Area: TBD acres
Intended PV Leased Area: 27.5 acres

PROJECT OWNER:
HCE Moore II, LLC
4150 St Johns Pkwy, Ste 1000
Sanford, FL 32771

SITE LOCATION:
(35°20'N, 79°22'W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MAIN ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MAIN GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANEL, 310 W POLYCRYSTALLINE  72-CELL MODULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACKING UNIT, 19 MODULES 2 HIGH, 25 DEGREES TILT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Landscaping Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPING BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER PAD, 1 x 1.666 MW  SMA INVERTER & TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY POND FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE BUFFER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Access Road 20' Radius First 20' Paved

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDINGS TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' EXISTING TREE BUFFER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' EXISTING TREE BUFFER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Landscaping Buffer as required by the county

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Landscaping Buffer as required by the county

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL LANDSCAPE PLAN TYPE 3  15 evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  7 evergreen shrubs per 100 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  evergreen shrubs per 100 evergreen shrubs per 100  shrubs per 100 shrubs per 100  per 100 per 100  100 100 linear feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  wide. Trees to reach out a minimum wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  Trees to reach out a minimum Trees to reach out a minimum  to reach out a minimum to reach out a minimum  reach out a minimum reach out a minimum  out a minimum out a minimum  a minimum a minimum  minimum minimum height of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  in three (3) years. Shrubs to in three (3) years. Shrubs to  three (3) years. Shrubs to three (3) years. Shrubs to  (3) years. Shrubs to (3) years. Shrubs to  years. Shrubs to years. Shrubs to  Shrubs to Shrubs to  to to grow to a height of two (2) feet in two (2) years. Setbacks from property line to the fence will be  from property line to the fence will be from property line to the fence will be  property line to the fence will be property line to the fence will be  line to the fence will be line to the fence will be  to the fence will be to the fence will be  the fence will be the fence will be  fence will be fence will be  will be will be  be be covered with existing vegetation to be used as  with existing vegetation to be used as with existing vegetation to be used as  existing vegetation to be used as existing vegetation to be used as  vegetation to be used as vegetation to be used as  to be used as to be used as  be used as be used as  used as used as  as as existing landscape buffer. Evergreen Tree: Green Giant Arborvitae or similar. Evergreen Bush: Needle Point Holly or similar. Natural landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to  landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to  will be enhanced as necessary to will be enhanced as necessary to  be enhanced as necessary to be enhanced as necessary to  enhanced as necessary to enhanced as necessary to  as necessary to as necessary to  necessary to necessary to  to to ensure it meets type 3 requirements

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT. Top view

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEEDLE POINT HOLLY OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE, 15 TREES EVERY 100 LINEAR FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN SHRUB , 7 SHRUBS EVERY 100 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT TYPE 3. Front view (Natural landcaping will be enhanced as necessary to ensure it meets Type 3 requirements)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' POST EMBEDMENT (Approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
G202

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" x 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL ADVISORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  AND THE IDEAS AND AND THE IDEAS AND  THE IDEAS AND THE IDEAS AND  IDEAS AND IDEAS AND  AND AND DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  HEREIN ARE HEREIN ARE  ARE ARE THE PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  OF ESA MANAGEMENT OF ESA MANAGEMENT  ESA MANAGEMENT ESA MANAGEMENT  MANAGEMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC AS PART OF THE  PLLC AS PART OF THE PLLC AS PART OF THE  AS PART OF THE AS PART OF THE  PART OF THE PART OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL  OF PROFESSIONAL OF PROFESSIONAL  PROFESSIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  AND CANNOT BE USED, IN AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  CANNOT BE USED, IN CANNOT BE USED, IN  BE USED, IN BE USED, IN  USED, IN USED, IN  IN IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  OR IN PART, FOR OTHER OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  IN PART, FOR OTHER IN PART, FOR OTHER  PART, FOR OTHER PART, FOR OTHER  FOR OTHER FOR OTHER  OTHER OTHER PROJECTS WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  THE EXPLICIT THE EXPLICIT  EXPLICIT EXPLICIT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  FROM ESA FROM ESA  ESA ESA MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  PLLC. IT IS PLLC. IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON TO  FOR ANY PERSON TO FOR ANY PERSON TO  ANY PERSON TO ANY PERSON TO  PERSON TO PERSON TO  TO TO ALTER ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  ANY CONTENTS OF THESE ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  CONTENTS OF THESE CONTENTS OF THESE  OF THESE OF THESE  THESE THESE DRAWINGS UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  UNLESS THEY HAVE THE UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  THEY HAVE THE THEY HAVE THE  HAVE THE HAVE THE  THE THE APPROVAL OF THE LICENSED  OF THE LICENSED OF THE LICENSED  THE LICENSED THE LICENSED  LICENSED LICENSED PROFESSIONAL EXPLICITLY IN WRITING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/05/02

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCE Moore II, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
415 Stage Rd, Carthage, NC 28327

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/10/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
00

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCONNECTION REQUEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT DRAWING PRELIMINARY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SHEET SIZE AT FULL SCALE: 24" x 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER: NC LIC#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID K. CLICK 041877

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/03/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRATE SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/03/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD TEMP. CONSTRUCTION ZONES/LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/05/02

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN MODIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC



 Agenda Item: 
        Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016 
 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Major J. A. Conway 
 
DATE: July 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Medical Care Services – Detention Center Amended Contract with  
          Southern Health Partners for FY 2016  
 
PRESENTER:  Andy Conway 
 
 
REQUEST: 
  

It is requested that the Board review and approve the proposed amendment to the Southern 
Health Partners contract for providing medical care services to inmates at the Detention Center for 
FY2016. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
 The County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with Contract 
Amendment No. 5, dated May 19, 2016, which was for the purposes of increasing the amount not to 
exceed from $201,543.32 to $222,087.22.  

Our original cost pool sum of $55,000 had already been exhausted, which was the purpose of 
Amendment #5.  This allowed us to pay our medical bills incurred by inmates in our custody through the 
month of April 2016. 
    
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
  

Upon approval of this amendment to the contract, Southern Health Partners will be 
reimbursed for cost pool overages as medical care services have already been provided to inmates 
during the months of May and June 2016, at the Detention Center. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
  

Having already exceeded the cost pool for the current fiscal year, we have been billed for 
medical services rendered for May and June 2016 in the amount of $7,127.43.     

The proposed increase of FY 2016 budget would increase the current not exceed amount to 
$229,214.65.  We have sufficient funds in our budget for this increase. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
  

It is the Sheriff’s recommendation that the contract be amended to increase the not to exceed 
amount from $222,087.22 to $229,214.65. 
   
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.



 
MOTION 
 

I motion to approve the proposed amendment to the contract with Southern Health Partners 
for FY2016 for providing medical services to inmates at the Detention Center. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
  

1. Copy of proposed Amendment #6 



FN 10-0204f 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 6 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 6 (this “Amendment”) is entered into the 2nd day of August, 
2016, between the County of Moore (the “County”) and and Southern Health Partners, Inc., an 
entity incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Contractor”). 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously entered into an agreement dated July 1, 2010, 
which was for the purposes of providing medical care to the inmates of the Moore County 
Detention Center (the “Original Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with 
Contract Amendment No. 1, dated June 7, 2011, which was for the purposes of increasing the 
amount not to exceed from $177,072.60 to $180,614.04; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with 
Contract Amendment No. 2, dated June 19, 2012, which was for the purposes on increasing the 
amount not to exceed from $180,614.04 to $182,420.16 for Fiscal Year 2012-2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with 
Contract Amendment No. 3, dated August 6, 2013, which was for the purposes of increasing the 
amount not to exceed from $180,614.04 to $182,420.16 for Fiscal Year 2013-2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with 
Contract Amendment No. 4, dated August 5, 2014, which was for the purposes of increasing the 
amount not to exceed from $182,420.16 to $201,543.32 for Fiscal Year 2014-2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement with 
Contract Amendment No. 5, dated May 19, 2016, which was for the purposes of increasing the 
amount not to exceed from $201,543.32 to $222,087.22 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties now desire to increase the amount not to exceed from $222,087.22 to 
$229,214.65, which is due to increased expenditures in excess of the cost pool resulting from 
medical services provided to inmates of the Moore County Detention Center during the 2015-
2016 Fiscal Year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The first sentence of Paragraph 3 of the Original Agreement will be amended to read, 
“The Contractor shall receive from County a sum not to exceed $229,214.65 as full 
compensation for the provision of services.” 
 



FN 10-0204f Page 2 of 2 

2. All other terms and conditions of the Original Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Amendment to be 
executed by their duly authorized officers or agents as of the date first written above. 
 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  CONTRACTOR 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
 
ATTEST:  ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Laura M. Williams  By:   
Clerk to the Board  Title:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 



 Agenda Item:   
        Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Major J. A. Conway   
 
DATE: July 25, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment for Inmate Food Services 
 
PRESENTER:  Major J. A. Conway 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
 We are requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve an Amendment to the contract 
with Aramark Correctional Services allowing for an increase in the amount not to exceed from 
$240,000.00 to $249,849.23, an increase of $9,849.23. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 Moore County entered into an amended contract with Aramark Correctional Services for 
inmate meals with the amount not to exceed $240,000.00 in July, 2015.  During FY2016, our average 
daily population increased to 152 inmates.  This increase in inmate population resulted in an increase 
in the number of meals served to the inmates. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
 If approved, Aramark Correctional Services will be paid the additional amount of the 
amended contract from the Sheriff’s Office FY2016 Budget. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
 Sufficient funds were previously budgeted in anticipation of this increase. 
  
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
 Sheriff Godfrey is recommending that the Board approve this amended contract with Aramark 
Correctional Services, LLC. 
 
MOTION: 
 
 I motion to amend the food services contract with Aramark Correctional Services, LLC 
increasing the amount not to exceed to $249,849.23 and to authorize the chairman to sign the 
amended contract. 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.



SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Copy of the Amended Contract 
2. Invoice 
 

 
 



COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 6 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 

This Contract Amendment No. 6 (this “Amendment”), is made this 2nd day of August, 2016, between 
the County of Moore (the “County”) and Aramark Correctional Services, LLC (“Aramark”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Aramark executed an Operating Agreement, dated June 19, 2012, which 

was for the management of the food service operation of the Moore County Sheriff’s Office Detention 
Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties amended the Operating Agreement by Amendment No. 1, dated August 6, 

2013, which was for the purpose of amending the price per meal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties amended the Operating Agreement by Amendment No. 2, dated July 15, 

2014, which was for the purpose of amending the price per meal and increasing the amount not to exceed 
from $224,000.00 to $230,000.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties amended the Operating Agreement by Amendment No. 3, dated June 16, 

2015, which was for the purposes of increasing the price per meal due to an increase in food commodities 
and to increase the amount not to exceed from $230,000.00 to $240,000.00 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties amended the Operating Agreement by Amendment No. 4, dated June 21, 

2015, which was for the purposes of increasing the amount not to exceed for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 from 
$230,000.00 to $233,900.67, due to an increased number of meals served which resulting from an 
increased jail population; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties amended the Operating Agreement by Amendment No. 5, dated July 19, 

2016, which was for the purposes of increasing the amount not to exceed for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 from 
$240,000 to $269,000 and amending the price per meal charged as the result of changes in the Consumer 
Price Index; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties now desire to amend the Operating Agreement for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 to 

increase the amount not to exceed from $240,000 to $249,849.23, due to an increased number of meals 
served. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, 

the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The first paragraph of Section 3B will be amended to read 

 
The per meal prices stated in this Agreement are firm for the period 
beginning on the Effective Date and ending on June 30, 2013.  Aramark 
shall receive from County a sum not to exceed $224,000.00 as full 
compensation for the provision of services during the County’s Fiscal 
Year 2012-2013.  Aramark shall receive from County a sum not to 
exceed $233,900.67 as full compensation for the provision of services 



 

during the County’s Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  Aramark shall receive from 
County a sum not to exceed $249,849.23 as full compensation for the 
provision of services during the County’s Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  
Aramark shall receive from County a sum not to exceed $269,000.00 
beginning with the County’s Fiscal Year 2016-2017.  County agrees to 
pay at the rates specified for services, satisfactorily performed, in 
accordance with this contract.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the 
event the services provided hereunder are expected to exceed the sum not 
to exceed during any applicable fiscal year, the County and Aramark 
shall agree as to the amount of additional funds that may be needed to 
enable continued performance of this Agreement and shall document 
such agreement allocation in an amendment hereto that shall be 
presented to the County’s Board for approval.  In the event that 
additional funds are not made available for the purposes of this 
Agreement, Aramark shall not be obligated to continue to provide 
services hereunder. 

 
2. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Operating Agreement will remain in full 

force and effect. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 4 

to be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This agreement is effective as of the date first 
written above. 
 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  ARAMARK 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 





  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  8/2/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Public Works / Solid Waste   
 
DATE:  7/22/16    
 
SUBJECT:  Service Contract for Recycling Services  
 
PRESENTER: Chad Beane – Solid Waste & Recycling Division Mgr. 
 
 
REQUEST:  Service Contract for recycling services from North Davidson Garbage Service, Inc. 
(NDGS) for FY 2016-17 with an amount not to exceed $65,000.  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  Moore County has been sending its recyclable material to North Davidson 
Garbage Service, Inc. for a few years now.  Currently, Moore County collects and transports all of the 
recycling material that is brought into its seven collection sites to the Moore County Landfill transfer 
station.  Once it’s received at the transfer station, it is loaded into NDGS transfer trailers and hauled 
to their material recovery facility (MRF) for processing.         
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:   
Approve the service contract with North Davidson Garbage Services, Inc. and approve the Chairman 
to sign all necessary documents. This contract is in contrast from previous years contracts and there is 
a charge to accept recycling from the North Davidson Garbage Service, Inc.  The recycling market 
has digressed and has resulted in the need to charge for recycling.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: Funding for the Recycling Services is included in the 
Contract Services line item in the FY 2016-17 Budget.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Make a motion to approve the service contract with North Davidson Garbage Services, Inc. and 
authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents.   
 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
     
    Contract 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.C.



FN 16-0233 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 
This Contract is entered into the 21st day of June, 2016, between the County of Moore, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and North Davidson Garbage Service, 
Inc., an entity incorporated in the State of North Carolina (the “Contractor”). 

 
1. Services to be Provided and Agreed Charges 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide services and materials (collectively referred to as “Services”) 

contained in this Contract pursuant to the provisions and specifications identified in Attachment 1, 
which is incorporated by reference in this Contract.  Pursuant to Section 3 of this Contract, the 
County agrees to pay for Services contained in Attachment 1. 
 

2. Term of Contract 

 
The term of this Contract is from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.  Unless terminated 

pursuant to Section 12, this Contract will be automatically renewed for additional one (1) year 
periods, based on the County’s fiscal year (July 1 – June 30), starting July 1, 2017, not to exceed a 
total of four (4) renewals. 

 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified Services and may be 

terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 

3. Payment to Contractor 

 
During the initial term of this Contract and during each subsequent renewal, the Contractor will 

receive from the County an amount not to exceed $65,000.00 as full compensation for the provision 
of Services as provided herein.  The County agrees to pay at the rates specified for Services, 
satisfactorily performed or provided, in accordance with this Contract.  Unless otherwise specified, 
the Contractor will submit an itemized invoice to the County by the end of the month during which 
Services are performed or provided.  Payment will be processed promptly upon receipt and approval 
of the invoice by the County. 

 
4. Independent Contractor 

 
The County and Contractor agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor and will not 

represent itself as an agent or employee of the County for any purpose in the performance of the 
Contractor’s duties under this Contract.  Accordingly, the Contractor will be responsible for payment 
of all federal, state and local taxes as well as business license fees arising out of the Contractor’s 
activities in accordance with this Contract.  For purposes of this Contract taxes will include, but not 
be limited to, Federal and State Income, Social Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 

 
The Contractor, as an independent contractor, will perform all services in a professional manner 

and in accordance with the standards of applicable professional organizations and licensing agencies. 
 



 

FN 16-0233 Page 2 of 6 

5. Insurance 

 
The Contractor will maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all of the Contractor’s 

employees.  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance will be in the amounts prescribed by the laws of 
the State of North Carolina. 

 
The Contractor will maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 
 

 Bodily Injury $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 Property Damage $100,000.00 per occurrence 
 Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence 
 

Professional liability insurance will be required whenever the Contractor is required to be 
certified, licensed, or registered by a regulatory entity or where the Contractor’s error in judgment, 
planning, design, or etc. could result in economic loss to the County.  If professional liability 
insurance is required, the coverage must provide for no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single 
limit per occurrence. 

 
The Contractor agrees to furnish the County proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 

requirements of this Contract upon request.  The Contractor, upon request by the County, will furnish 
a certificate of insurance from an insurance company, licensed to do business in the State of North 
Carolina and acceptable to the County, verifying the existence of the insurance coverage required by 
the County.  The certificate will provide for sixty (60) days advance notice in the event of 
termination or cancellation of coverage. 

 
6. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the 

County, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers 
or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising 
out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract or the actions of the Contractor, its officials, 
employees, or contractors under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the Contractor in 
connection with this Contract.  This indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
7. Health and Safety 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety 

precautions and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing 
Services under this Contract. 

 
8. E-Verify 

 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the County may 

not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor 
represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the Contractor 
will be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 



 

FN 16-0233 Page 3 of 6 

 

9. Iran Divestment Act Certification 

 

Seller certifies that: (i) Seller is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the State 
Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final Divestment List”), and (ii) Seller will not 
utilize any subcontractor performing work under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final 
Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the 
address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days. 

 
10. Non-Discrimination in Employment 

 
The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 

of age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. In the event the Contractor is determined by the 
final order of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of this provision or any non-
discrimination provision of federal, state or local law, this Contract may be suspended or terminated, 
in whole or in part, by the County.  In addition, the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
contracts with the County. 

 
11. Governing Law 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of 

the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions 
relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in the County of 
Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
12. Termination of Agreement 

 
This Contract may be terminated, without cause, by either party upon thirty (30) days written 

notice to the other party.  This termination notice period will begin upon receipt of the notice of 
termination.  Such a termination does not bar either party from pursuing a claim for damages for 
breach of the Contract. 

 
This Contract may be terminated, for cause, by the non-breaching party notifying the breaching 

party of a substantial failure to perform in accordance with the provisions of this Contract and if the 
failure is not corrected within ten (10) days of the receipt of the notification. Upon such termination, 
the parties will be entitled to such additional rights and remedies as permitted by law. 

 
Termination of this Contract, either with or without cause, will not form the basis of any claim 

for loss of anticipated profits by either party. 
 

13. Successors and Assigns 

 
The Contractor will not assign its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the 

County.  The Contractor has no authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the County. 
 

14. Compliance with Laws 

 
The Contractor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and local laws, 

regulations or orders, as amended or supplemented.  The implementation of this Contract will be 

http://www.nctreasurer.com/Iran


 

FN 16-0233 Page 4 of 6 

carried out in strict compliance with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination in 
employment. 

 
15. Notices 

 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when 

received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY OF MOORE: MOORE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
 ATTN:  RANDY GOULD, DIRECTOR 
 P.O. BOX 1927 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
CONTRACTOR: NORTH DAVIDSON GARBAGE SERVICE 
 P.O. BOX 90 
 WELCOME, NC  27374 

 
16. Audit Rights 

 
For all Services being provided under this Contract, the County has the right to inspect, examine, 

and make copies of any and all books, accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the 
performance of those Services.  Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon 
by both parties.  The Contractor must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week 
of the request for them. 

 
17. County Not Responsible for Expenses 

 
The County will not be liable to the Contractor for any expenses paid or incurred by the 

Contractor unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

18. Equipment 

 
The Contractor will supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and supplies 

required to provide contracted Services unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

19. Priority of Documents 

 
In the event of any inconsistency between the Contract and any attachment to the Contract, the 

Contract will have priority. 
 

20. Severability 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

21. Non-Waiver 

 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect 

that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available 



 

FN 16-0233 Page 5 of 6 

to it by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract 
will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
22. Entire Agreement 

 
This Contract and Attachment 1 constitute the entire understanding between the parties and 

supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 
matter hereof. 

 
23. Amendment 

 
This Contract may only be amended by the written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

24. Drafted by Both Parties 

 
This Contract is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no interpretation will be made 

to the contrary. 
 

25. Headings 

 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of 

any provision. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed 

by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  CONTRACTOR 

 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
Attest: 

 

 

  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0233 Page 6 of 6 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

A. The Contractor will provide all labor, material, and equipment necessary to provide the 
below described recycling services to the County. 
 

B. Rate.  The Contractor will invoice the County at the rate of $15.00 per ton of single stream 
recyclable materials. 

 
C. Recyclable Materials.  The County will supply to the Contractor, and the Contractor will 

acquire from the County, the County's entire output of single stream recyclable materials, 
which includes: newspapers, magazines, boxboard, junk mail, shopping catalogs, home office 
paper, corrugated packaging, aluminum beverage cans, steel food cans, PET plastic drink 
bottles, HDPE plastic food containers and three colors of glass. 
 
Single stream recyclable materials do not include: ceramics, window glass, corrugated wax 
products, aluminum pie plates, aluminum foil, auto parts, toys, hazardous chemicals, aerosol 
cans or batteries. 
 

D. The parties agree that the recyclable materials are waste and have no independent value. 
 

E. The County agrees to allow the Contractor to reject recyclable materials due to excess 
contamination or moisture content, in which event the County will be responsible for all costs 
and alternative disposal arrangements of the rejected portion of the recyclable materials. 

 
F. The County agrees to monitor the contents of the recyclable materials and agrees to take 

reasonable steps to ensure that the materials collected do not contain any of the following: 
hazardous materials, wastes or substances; fungicides, herbicides, rodenticides or containers 
contaminated with such materials; chemical bags or containers that may have held or retained 
objectionable chemicals including, but not limited to, compounds of heavy metals of 
antimony, arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, mercury, selenium, silver and 
zinc; toxic carcinogenic and potentially carcinogenic materials such as dyes, formaldehyde, 
PCBs, or phenolic based resins, pigments, etc.; wastes or pollutants; contaminants' pollutants; 
infectious wastes; medical wastes; or radioactive wastes as defined in applicable federal, 
state, or local laws. 
 

G. Health and Safety.  The Contractor is responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising 
all safety precautions and programs as required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies. 

 
H. The County will deliver all recyclable materials to the Moore County Landfill Transfer 

Station, where it will be the responsibility of the County to see that the Contractor’s transport 
trailers are loaded. 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  8/2/16 
 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:   July 25, 2016    
 
SUBJECT:  McGill Contract – Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion 
  
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST:  
Approve an Agreement with McGill Associates for Professional Service for the Vass Phase 2 Wastewater 
Collection System Expansion project pending the review and approval of the County Attorney. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County wishes to expand the wastewater collection system in the Town of Vass.  This proposed 
project is intended to complete the sewer service to the large unsewered area within Vass.  The 
Engineering agreement includes the Study and Report Phase services and Income Surveys to complete the 
funding applications to the USDA Rural Development and CDBG.  The preparation of a Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER), Environmental Report and Income Surveys are required documents as part of 
the funding applications.  McGill Associates will perform these services for $26,000.   
 
Upon award of the funding from the USDA or CDBG, the contract will be amended to increase the scope 
of services to be provided by McGill Associates to include the Preliminary Design, Final Design, Bidding 
and Negotiating, Construction and Post Construction phases of the project.  At that time, the amount not 
to exceed will be increased by $224,000, for a total contract amount of $250,000. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Engineer will begin work in accordance with the scope of services for the Study and Report Phase 
Services and Income Surveys. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The contract amount is a lump sum of $26,000.  If the USDA or CDBG funding are granted, amend the 
contract to increase the scope of work and the amount not to exceed by $224,000 for a total contract 
amount of $250,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the Agreement with McGill Associates for the Study and Report Phase and 
Income Surveys for the Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion pending the review and 
approval of the County Attorney. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement for Professional Services with McGill Associates, P.A. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.



 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its 
use  or modification.    This  document  should  be  adapted  to  the  particular  circumstances  of  the  contemplated 
Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations. 



 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

This Agreement has been prepared for use with EJCDC® C‐700, Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, 2013 Edition.  Their provisions are interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate 
a change in the other.  For guidance on the completion and use of this Agreement, see EJCDC® E‐001, 
Commentary on the EJCDC Engineering Services Agreements, 2013 Edition. 

 

 

 

Copyright © 2014: 

 

National Society of Professional Engineers 

1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314‐2794 

(703) 684‐2882 

www.nspe.org 

 

American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 347‐7474 

www.acec.org 

 

American Society of Civil Engineers 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191‐4400 

    (800) 548‐2723 

www.asce.org 

 

 

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above.  
The National  Society  of  Professional  Engineers  is  the  Copyright Administrator  for  the  EJCDC  documents; 
please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE. 

 

NOTE:  EJCDC  publications  may  be  purchased  at  www.ejcdc.org,  or  from  any  of  the  sponsoring 
organizations above. 



 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

Page  

ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES OF ENGINEER ................................................................................................................... 1 
1.01  Scope .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES ............................................................................................................ 1 
2.01  General ........................................................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE 3 – SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES ............................................................................................ 2 
3.01  Commencement ............................................................................................................................. 2 
3.02  Time for Completion ...................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 4 – INVOICES AND PAYMENTS .............................................................................................................. 3 
4.01  Invoices ........................................................................................................................................... 3 
4.02  Payments ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

ARTICLE 5 – OPINIONS OF COST .......................................................................................................................... 3 
5.01  Opinions of Probable Construction Cost ....................................................................................... 3 
5.02  Designing to Construction Cost Limit ............................................................................................ 4 
5.03  Opinions of Total Project Costs ...................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................................................................ 4 
6.01  Standards of Performance ............................................................................................................. 4 
6.02  Design Without Construction Phase Services ............................................................................... 6 
6.03  Use of Documents .......................................................................................................................... 6 
6.04  Electronic Transmittals ................................................................................................................... 7 
6.05  Insurance ........................................................................................................................................ 7 
6.06  Suspension and Termination ......................................................................................................... 8 
6.07  Controlling Law ............................................................................................................................... 9 
6.08  Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries .......................................................................................... 9 
6.09  Dispute Resolution ....................................................................................................................... 10 
6.10  Environmental Condition of Site .................................................................................................. 10 
6.11  Indemnification and Mutual Waiver ........................................................................................... 11 
6.12  Records Retention ........................................................................................................................ 11 
6.13  Miscellaneous Provisions ............................................................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE 7 – DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................... 12 
7.01  Defined Terms .............................................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE 8 – EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................. 16 
8.01  Exhibits Included: ......................................................................................................................... 16 
8.02  Total Agreement........................................................................................................................... 17 
8.03  Designated Representatives ........................................................................................................ 17 
8.04  Engineer's Certifications .............................................................................................................. 17 
8.05  Federal Requirements ................................................................................................................. 17 

 

   



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:   

ARTICLE 1 –  SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

1.01 Scope 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein and in Exhibit A. 

ARTICLE 2 –  OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.01 General 

A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B. 

B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit C. 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of     (“Effective Date”) between 

Moore County  (“Owner”) and 

McGill Associates, P.A.  (“Engineer”). 

 
Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as follows: 
 

Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion ("Project"). 

Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7.  

Engineer's services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows:   
1. Preparation  of  a  Preliminary  Engineering Report  for  the  proposed wastewater  collection  system 

extension  in  accordance  with  RUS  Bulletin  1780‐2.    The  report  is  intended  to  supplement  an 
Application package to USDA for Rural Development Funding. 

2. Preparation of an Environmental Report in accordance with RD Instruction 1970‐C for the proposed 
wastewater  collection  system  extension.    This  report  is  intended  to  supplement  an  Application 
package to USDA for Rural Development Funding. 

3. Preparation of the Application package and related attachments for submittal to USDA for Rural 
Development Funding.   

4. Conduct income surveys and prepare Income Survey Questionnaires for the project service area to 
determine specific areas that qualify for potential Community Development Block Grant ‐ 
Infrastructure (CDBG‐I) funding.  Upon approval by the County to proceed, prepare and submit a 
CDBG‐I grant application to NCDEQ for the selected project.   

5. Completion of the Preliminary Design and Final Design Phases of the project, and the pursuit of all 
regulatory permits from appropriate agencies.  

6. Provide Bidding and Negotiation, Construction Phase, and Post‐Construction Phase services for the 
proposed wastewater collection system extension based on the approved Final Design plans. 

 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 2 

C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and  instructions that it furnishes to Engineer 
pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all programs, reports, 
data,  and  other  information  furnished  by Owner  to  Engineer  pursuant  to  this  Agreement.  
Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and 
information in performing or furnishing services under this Agreement, subject to any express 
limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished items. 

D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or otherwise 
becomes aware of:  

1.  any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services;  

2. the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or  

3. any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, (b) the Work, (c) 
the performance of any Constructor, or (d) Owner’s performance of its responsibilities under 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 –  SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES 

3.01 Commencement 

A. Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date. 

3.02 Time for Completion 

A. Engineer shall complete  its obligations within a reasonable time.   Specific periods of time for 
rendering services, or specific dates by which services are  to be completed, are provided  in 
Exhibit A, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable. 

B. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and 
continuous progress of Engineer’s services  is  impaired, or Engineer’s services are delayed or 
suspended, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts of 
Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.   

C. If Owner authorizes  changes  in  the  scope, extent, or  character of  the Project or Engineer’s 
services,  then  the  time  for completion of Engineer’s services, and  the rates and amounts of 
Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 

D. Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so as not 
to delay the Engineer’s performance of its services.   

E. If  Engineer  fails,  through  its  own  fault,  to  complete  the  performance  required  in  this 
Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be entitled, as its sole 
remedy, to the recovery of direct damages, if any, resulting from such failure. 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 3 

ARTICLE 4 –  INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 

4.01 Invoices 

A. Preparation and Submittal of Invoices:  Engineer shall prepare invoices  in accordance with  its 
standard  invoicing practices and the terms of Exhibit C.   Engineer shall submit  its  invoices to 
Owner on a monthly basis.  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  Invoices 
must include a breakdown of services provided. 

4.02 Payments 

A. Application  to  Interest and Principal:   Payment will be credited  first  to any  interest owed  to 
Engineer and then to principal.   

B. Failure to Pay:    If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and expenses 
within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then: 

1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate 
of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and 

2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under this 
Agreement until Owner has paid  in  full all amounts due  for  services, expenses, and other 
related charges.  Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

C. Disputed  Invoices:    If Owner disputes  an  invoice,  either  as  to  amount or  entitlement,  then 
Owner  shall  promptly  advise  Engineer  in  writing  of  the  specific  basis  for  doing  so,  may 
withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion subject to the 
terms of Paragraph 4.01.   

D. Sales  or Use  Taxes:    If  after  the  Effective Date  any  governmental  entity  takes  a  legislative 
action  that  imposes  additional  sales  or  use  taxes  on  Engineer’s  services  or  compensation 
under  this  Agreement,  then  Engineer  may  invoice  such  additional  sales  or  use  taxes  for 
reimbursement  by  Owner.  Owner  shall  reimburse  Engineer  for  the  cost  of  such  invoiced 
additional sales or use taxes; such reimbursement shall be in addition to the compensation to 
which Engineer is entitled under the terms of Exhibit C. 

ARTICLE 5 –  OPINIONS OF COST 

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost 

A. Engineer’s  opinions  (if  any)  of  probable  Construction  Cost  are  to  be made  on  the  basis  of 
Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and  general  familiarity with  the  construction  industry.  
However, because Engineer has no  control over  the cost of  labor, materials, equipment, or 
services  furnished  by  others,  or  over  contractors’ methods  of  determining  prices,  or  over 
competitive  bidding  or  market  conditions,  Engineer  cannot  and  does  not  guarantee  that 
proposals,  bids,  or  actual  Construction  Cost  will  not  vary  from  opinions  of  probable 
Construction Cost prepared by Engineer.  If Owner requires greater assurance as to probable 
Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate.  



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 4 

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 

A. If  a Construction Cost  limit  is  established between Owner  and  Engineer,  such Construction 
Cost limit and a statement of Engineer’s rights and responsibilities with respect thereto will be 
specifically set forth in Exhibit F to this Agreement. 

5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs 

A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be limited to assisting 
the Owner  in  tabulating  the various  categories  that  comprise Total Project Costs.   Engineer 
assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project Costs. 

ARTICLE 6 –  GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 

6.01 Standards of Performance 

A. Standard of Care:   The standard of care  for all professional engineering and related services 
performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily 
used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same 
time and  in the same  locality.   Engineer makes no warranties, express or  implied, under this 
Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services performed or furnished by Engineer.  

B. Technical  Accuracy:    Owner  shall  not  be  responsible  for  discovering  deficiencies  in  the 
technical  accuracy  of  Engineer’s  services.    Engineer  shall  correct  deficiencies  in  technical 
accuracy  without  additional  compensation,  unless  such  corrective  action  is  directly 
attributable to deficiencies in Owner‐furnished information. 

C. Consultants:   Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist  in 
the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and substantive 
objections by Owner.   

D. Reliance on Others:   Subject  to  the standard of care set  forth  in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer 
and  its  Consultants may  use  or  rely  upon  design  elements  and  information  ordinarily  or 
customarily  furnished  by  others,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  specialty  contractors, 
manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of technical standards.   

E. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures: 

1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

2. Engineer shall comply with any and all policies, procedures, and  instructions of Owner that 
are applicable to Engineer’s performance of services under this Agreement and that Owner 
provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, 
and to the extent compliance is not inconsistent with professional practice requirements. 

3. This Agreement  is based on  Laws  and Regulations  and Owner‐provided written policies 
and procedures as of the Effective Date.  The following may be the basis for modifications 
to Owner’s  responsibilities or  to  Engineer’s  scope of  services,  times of performance, or 
compensation:  



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 5 

a.  changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations; 

b.  the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner‐provided written policies and 
procedures;  

c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner‐provided written policies or procedures.  

F. Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by who requested, that would 
result  in  the  Engineer  having  to  certify,  guarantee,  or warrant  the  existence  of  conditions 
whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain.  Owner agrees not to make resolution of any 
dispute  with  the  Engineer  or  payment  of  any  amount  due  to  the  Engineer  in  any  way 
contingent upon the Engineer signing any such document. 

G. The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are to be 
EJCDC®  C‐700  “Standard  General  Conditions  of  the  Construction  Contract”  (2013  Edition), 
prepared by  the Engineers  Joint Contract Documents Committee, unless expressly  indicated 
otherwise in Exhibit J or elsewhere in this Agreement. 

H. Engineer  shall  not  at  any  time  supervise,  direct,  control,  or  have  authority  over  any 
Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible  for  the means, 
methods,  techniques,  sequences,  or  procedures  of  construction  selected  or  used  by  any 
Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at 
the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to 
that Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer shall not be responsible for 
the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

I. Engineer neither guarantees  the performance of any Constructor nor assumes  responsibility 
for  any  Constructor’s,  failure  to  furnish  and  perform  the  Work  in  accordance  with  the 
Construction Contract Documents.  

J. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction Contract 
Documents,  or  any  application,  interpretation,  clarification,  or  modification  of  the 
Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by Engineer or its Consultants. 

K. Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety bonding or 
insurance‐related  advice,  recommendations,  counseling,  or  research,  or  enforcement  of 
construction insurance or surety bonding requirements. 

L. Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.   

M. Engineer’s  services  do not  include  (1)  serving  as  a  “municipal  advisor”  for  purposes of  the 
registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd‐Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules  issued by the Securities and 
Exchange  Commission,  or  (2)  advising Owner,  or  any municipal  entity  or  other  person  or 
entity,  regarding  municipal  financial  products  or  the  issuance  of  municipal  securities, 
including  advice  with  respect  to  the  structure,  timing,  terms,  or  other  similar  matters 
concerning such products or issuances. 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 6 

N. While  at  the  Site,  Engineer,  its  Consultants,  and  their  employees  and  representatives  shall 
comply with  the  applicable  requirements  of  Contractor’s  and  Owner’s  safety  programs  of 
which Engineer has been informed in writing. 

6.02 Design Without Construction Phase Services 

A. Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services expressly required of 
Engineer  in  Exhibit  A,  Paragraph  A1.05.    With  the  exception  of  such  expressly  required 
services, Engineer  shall  have  no  design,  Shop  Drawing  review,  or  other  obligations  during 
construction, and Owner assumes all  responsibility  for  the application and  interpretation of 
the Construction Contract Documents, review and response to Contractor claims, Construction 
Contract  administration,  processing  of  Change  Orders  and  submittals,  revisions  to  the 
Construction Contract Documents during construction, construction observation and review, 
review  of  Contractor’s  payment  applications,  and  all  other  necessary  Construction  Phase 
administrative, engineering, and professional  services.   Owner waives all  claims against  the 
Engineer that may be connected in any way to Construction Phase administrative, engineering, 
or professional  services except  for  those  services  that are expressly  required of Engineer  in 
Exhibit A. 

6.03 Use of Documents 

A. All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer shall retain an ownership and property 
interest  therein  (including  the  copyright  and  the  right  of  reuse  at  the  discretion  of  the 
Engineer) whether or not the Project is completed.  

B. If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings or Specifications under this Agreement, 
Engineer shall deliver to Owner at  least one original printed record version of such Drawings 
and Specifications, signed and sealed according to applicable Laws and Regulations. 

C. Owner may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in connection 
with the use of the Documents on the Project.  Engineer grants Owner a limited license to use 
the Documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, 
subject  to  receipt  by  Engineer  of  full  payment  due  and  owing  for  all  services  relating  to 
preparation of the Documents, and subject to the following limitations: Owner acknowledges 
that such Documents are not  intended or  represented  to be suitable  for use on  the Project 
unless completed by Engineer, or  for use or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of  the 
Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or 
adaptation  by  Engineer;  (2) any  such  use  or  reuse,  or  any modification  of  the Documents, 
without written  verification,  completion, or  adaptation  by  Engineer,  as  appropriate  for  the 
specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to 
Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants; 
(3) Owner  shall  indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and  its officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the 
Documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and (4) such 
limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

D. If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them, or 
adapts  them  for  extensions  of  the  Project  or  for  any  other  purpose,  then  Owner  shall 
compensate Engineer at rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer. 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 7 

6.04 Electronic Transmittals  

A. Owner  and  Engineer  may  transmit,  and  shall  accept,  Project‐related  correspondence, 
Documents,  text,  data,  drawings,  information,  and  graphics,  in  electronic media  or  digital 
format, either directly, or  through access  to a  secure Project website,  in accordance with a 
mutually agreeable protocol.  

B. If  this  Agreement  does  not  establish  protocols  for  electronic  or  digital  transmittals,  then 
Owner and Engineer shall may jointly develop such protocols.  

C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party makes no 
representations as  to  long  term compatibility, usability, or  readability of  the  items  resulting 
from  the  recipient’s  use of  software  application  packages, operating  systems,  or  computer 
hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the items, or from those 
established in applicable transmittal protocols. 

6.05 Insurance 

A. Engineer shall procure and maintain  insurance as set  forth  in Exhibit G. Engineer shall cause 
Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability insurance policy 
carried by Engineer.   

B. Owner  shall  procure  and maintain  insurance  as  set  forth  in  Exhibit  G.  Owner  shall  cause 
Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional insureds on any general liability policies 
carried by Owner, which are applicable to the Project. 

C. Owner  shall  require  Contractor  to  purchase  and  maintain  policies  of  insurance  covering 
workers’  compensation,  general  liability,  motor  vehicle  damage  and  injuries,  and  other 
insurance necessary to protect Owner’s and Engineer’s  interests  in the Project.   Owner shall 
require Contractor  to  cause Engineer and  its Consultants  to be  listed as additional  insureds 
with  respect  to  such  liability  insurance  purchased  and  maintained  by  Contractor  for  the 
Project. 

D. Owner and Engineer  shall each deliver  to  the other  certificates of  insurance evidencing  the 
coverages indicated in Exhibit G.  Such certificates shall be furnished prior to commencement 
of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the Agreement. 

E. All  policies  of  property  insurance  relating  to  the  Project,  including  but  not  limited  to  any 
builder’s risk policy, shall allow for waiver of subrogation rights and contain provisions to the 
effect that  in the event of payment of any  loss or damage the  insurers will have no rights of 
recovery against any  insured  thereunder or against Engineer or  its Consultants. Owner and 
Engineer waive all rights against each other, Contractor, the Consultants, and the respective 
officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of 
each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting from 
any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy and any other property 
insurance  relating  to  the  Project. Owner  and  Engineer  shall  take  appropriate measures  in 
other Project‐related contracts  to secure waivers of  rights consistent with  those set  forth  in 
this paragraph.  



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 8 

F. All policies of  insurance shall contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded 
will not be canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and that renewal will not be refused, 
until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the primary insured. Upon receipt 
of such notice,  the  receiving party shall promptly  forward a copy of  the notice  to  the other 
party to this Agreement.  

G. At any  time, Owner may  request  that Engineer or  its Consultants, at Owner’s sole expense, 
provide additional  insurance coverage,  increased  limits, or revised deductibles that are more 
protective  than  those specified  in Exhibit G.    If so  requested by Owner, and  if commercially 
available,  Engineer  shall  obtain  and  shall  require  its  Consultants  to  obtain  such  additional 
insurance  coverage,  different  limits,  or  revised  deductibles  for  such  periods  of  time  as 
requested by Owner, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate these requirements. 

6.06 Suspension and Termination 

A. Suspension: 

1. By Owner:  Owner may suspend the Project for up to 90 days upon seven days written notice 
to Engineer.   

2. By  Engineer:    Engineer may,  after  giving  seven  days  written  notice  to  Owner,  suspend 
services under this Agreement if Owner has failed to pay Engineer for invoiced services and 
expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or in response to the presence of Constituents of 
Concern at the Site, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D.  

B. Termination:    The  obligation  to  provide  further  services  under  this  Agreement  may  be 
terminated: 

1. For cause, 

a. by either party upon 30 days written notice  in  the event of substantial  failure by  the 
other party  to perform  in accordance with  the  terms hereof  through no  fault of  the 
terminating party. 

b. by Engineer: 

1) upon  seven  days  written  notice  if  Owner  demands  that  Engineer  furnish  or 
perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a  licensed professional; 
or  

2) upon  seven  days  written  notice  if  the  Engineer’s  services  for  the  Project  are 
delayed  or  suspended  for  more  than  90  days  for  reasons  beyond  Engineer’s 
control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of 
Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D. 

3) Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination. 

c. Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  this  Agreement  will  not  terminate  under 
Paragraph 6.06.B.1.a  if  the  party  receiving  such  notice  begins, within  seven  days  of 
receipt  of  such  notice,  to  correct  its  substantial  failure  to  perform  and  proceeds 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 9 

diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; provided, 
however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured 
within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same 
and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided for 
herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of receipt of 
the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner.   

C. Effective Date  of  Termination:    The  terminating  party  under  Paragraph  6.06.B may  set  the 
effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days  later than otherwise provided to allow 
Engineer  to  demobilize  personnel  and  equipment  from  the  Site,  to  complete  tasks whose 
value  would  otherwise  be  lost,  to  prepare  notes  as  to  the  status  of  completed  and 
uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

D. Payments Upon Termination: 

1. In  the event of any  termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be entitled  to  invoice 
Owner  and  to  receive  full payment  for  all  services performed or  furnished  in  accordance 
with this Agreement and all Reimbursable Expenses  incurred through the effective date of 
termination.   Upon making such payment, Owner shall have the  limited right to the use of 
Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 6.03. 

2. In  the event of  termination by Owner  for convenience or by Engineer  for cause, Engineer 
shall be entitled, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in Paragraph 6.06.D.1, to 
invoice  Owner  and  receive  payment  of  a  reasonable  amount  for  services  and  expenses 
directly attributable to termination, both before and after the effective date of termination, 
such  as  reassignment  of  personnel,  costs  of  terminating  contracts  with  Engineer’s 
Consultants,  and  other  related  close‐out  costs,  using  methods  and  rates  for  Additional 
Services as set forth in Exhibit C. 

6.07 Controlling Law 

A. The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties 
of  the parties to this Contract, are governed by  the  laws of  the State of North Carolina.   All 
actions relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in 
the County of Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner  and  Engineer  are  hereby  bound  and  the  successors,  executors,  administrators,  and 
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 6.08.B 
the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound  to  the other party  to  this Agreement 
and to the successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of 
such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither  Owner  nor  Engineer  may  assign,  sublet,  or  transfer  any  rights  under  or  interest 
(including, but without  limitation, money that  is due or may become due)  in this Agreement 
without  the written  consent of  the other party,  except  to  the  extent  that  any  assignment, 
subletting, or  transfer  is mandated by  law.   Unless specifically stated  to  the contrary  in any 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 10 

written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement: 

1. Nothing  in  this Agreement  shall be  construed  to  create,  impose, or  give  rise  to  any duty 
owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third‐party individual or entity, or to 
any surety for or employee of any of them. 

2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.   

3. Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.08.C shall appear  in 
the Construction Contract Documents. 

6.09 Dispute Resolution 

A. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a period of 
30  days  from  the  date  of  notice  prior  to  invoking  the  procedures  of  Exhibit  H  or  other 
provisions of this Agreement, or exercising their rights at law.   

B. If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under Paragraph 6.09.A, then either 
or both may  invoke the procedures of Exhibit H.    If Exhibit H  is not  included, or  if no dispute 
resolution method is specified in Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their rights at law.   

6.10 Environmental Condition of Site 

A. Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date to the best of Owner’s knowledge 
no  Constituents  of  Concern,  other  than  those  disclosed  in writing  to  Engineer,  exist  at  or 
adjacent to the Site.   

B. If Engineer encounters or  learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at  the Site,  then 
Engineer  shall  notify  (1) Owner  and  (2) appropriate  governmental  officials  if  Engineer 
reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations. 

C. It  is  acknowledged  by  both  parties  that  Engineer’s  scope  of  services  does  not  include  any 
services related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If Engineer or any other 
party  encounters, uncovers, or  reveals  an undisclosed Constituent of Concern,  then Owner 
shall promptly determine whether  to  retain a qualified expert  to evaluate such condition or 
take any necessary corrective action. 

D. If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary with respect to 
undisclosed  Constituents  of  Concern,  or  if  investigative  or  remedial  action  beyond  that 
reasonably contemplated  is needed to address a disclosed or known Constituent of Concern, 
then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, 
suspend performance of  services on  the portion of  the Project  affected  thereby until  such 
portion of the Project is no longer affected.  

E. If  the  presence  at  the  Site  of  undisclosed  Constituents  of  Concern  adversely  affects  the 
performance of Engineer’s  services under  this Agreement,  then  the Engineer  shall have  the 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 11 

option  of  (1)  accepting  an  equitable  adjustment  in  its  compensation  or  in  the  time  of 
completion, or both; or (2) terminating this Agreement for cause on seven days’ notice. 

F. Owner  acknowledges  that  Engineer  is performing professional  services  for Owner  and  that 
Engineer  is  not  and  shall  not  be  required  to  become  an  “owner,”  “arranger,”  “operator,” 
“generator,”  or  “transporter”  of  hazardous  substances,  as  defined  in  the  Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which are or 
may be  encountered  at or near  the  Site  in  connection with  Engineer’s  activities under  this 
Agreement. 

6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver 

A. Indemnification  by  Engineer:    To  the  fullest  extent  permitted  by  Laws  and  Regulations, 
Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, consultants, and employees, from losses, damages, and judgments (including 
reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’  fees and expenses) arising  from  third‐party claims or 
actions  relating  to  the  Project,  provided  that  any  such  claim,  action,  loss,  damages,  or 
judgment  is  attributable  to  bodily  injury,  sickness,  disease,  or  death,  or  to  injury  to  or 
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting 
therefrom,  but  only  to  the  extent  caused  by  any  negligent  act  or  omission  of  Engineer  or 
Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants.  

B. Indemnification by Owner:  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as  required by  Laws and 
Regulations  

C. No Defense Obligation:  The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not include a 
defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated. 

6.12 Records Retention 

A. Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of six years following completion or 
termination  of  its  services,  all  Documents,  records  (including  cost  records),  and  design 
calculations related to Engineer’s services or pertinent to Engineer’s performance under this 
Agreement.  Upon Owner’s request, Engineer shall provide a copy of any such item to Owner 
at cost. 

6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions  

A. Notices:    Any  notice  required  under  this  Agreement  will  be  in  writing,  addressed  to  the 
appropriate party at  its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered or 
certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service.  All notices shall be effective 
upon the date of receipt. 

B. Survival:    All  express  representations, waivers,  indemnifications,  and  limitations  of  liability 
included in this Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 

C. Severability:  Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Engineer, which agree that the Agreement shall be 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 12 

reformed  to  replace  such  stricken  provision  or  part  thereof with  a  valid  and  enforceable 
provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

D. Waiver:    A  party’s  non‐enforcement  of  any  provision  shall  not  constitute  a waiver  of  that 
provision, nor  shall  it affect  the enforceability of  that provision or of  the  remainder of  this 
Agreement. 

E. Accrual of Claims:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of action 
arising under  this Agreement shall be deemed  to have accrued, and all statutory periods of 
limitation shall commence, no later than the date of Substantial Completion. 

F.  E‐Verify:   Pursuant  to North Carolina General Statute § 143‐133.3, E‐verify Compliance,  the 
County  may  not  enter  into  a  contract  unless  the  contractor,  and  the  contractor’s 
subcontractors under the contract, comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  The Contractor represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the 
requirements  of  Article  2  of  Chapter  64  of  the General  Statutes.    Further,  the  Contractor 
warrants  that  any  subcontractors  used  by  the  Contractor  will  be  in  compliance  with  the 
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 

G. Iran Divestment Act:  The Contractor certifies that: (i) the Contractor is not listed on the Final 
Divestment List created by  the State Treasurer pursuant  to N.C.G.S. § 143C‐6A‐4  (the “Final 
Divestment List”), and  (ii)  the Contractor will not utilize any subcontractor performing work 
under this Purchase Order which  is  listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment 
List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran 
and should be updated every 180 days. 

H. Availability  of  Funds.    This  Contract  is  subject  to  the  availability  of  funds  to  purchase  the 
specified Services and may be terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ 
notice if such funds become unavailable. 

ARTICLE 7 –  DEFINITIONS 

7.01 Defined Terms 

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) terms (including the singular 
and plural  forms) printed with  initial capital  letters have  the meanings  indicated  in  the  text 
above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions: 

1. Addenda—Written or graphic  instruments  issued prior to the opening of bids which clarify, 
correct,  or  change  the  bidding  requirements  or  the  proposed  Construction  Contract 
Documents. 

2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in 
accordance with Part 2 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

3. Agreement—This written  contract  for professional  services between Owner and Engineer, 
including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly executed amendments. 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 13 

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor 
during the course of the Work  in requesting progress or final payments and which  is to be 
accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Construction Contract. 

5. Basic  Services—The  services  to  be  performed  for  or  furnished  to  Owner  by  Engineer  in 
accordance with Part 1 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

6. Change Order—A document which  is  signed by Contractor  and Owner  and  authorizes  an 
addition, deletion, or  revision  in  the Work or an adjustment  in  the Construction Contract 
Price or  the Construction Contract  Times, or other  revision  to  the Construction Contract, 
issued on or after the effective date of the Construction Contract.  

7. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted  in compliance with the 
procedural  requirements  set  forth  in  the Construction Contract,  seeking an adjustment  in 
Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract  Times, or both;  contesting  an  initial 
decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents 
or the acceptability of Work under the Construction Contract Documents; challenging a set‐
off  against  payments  due;  or  seeking  other  relief  with  respect  to  the  terms  of  the 
Construction Contract. 

8. Constituent  of  Concern—Asbestos,  petroleum,  radioactive  material,  polychlorinated 
biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of 
any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 
et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5501 et seq.; 
(c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the 
Toxic  Substances  Control Act,  15 U.S.C.  §§2601  et  seq.;  I  the  Clean Water Act,  33 U.S.C. 
§§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, State, 
or  local  statute,  law,  rule,  regulation,  ordinance,  resolution,  code,  order,  or  decree 
regulating,  relating  to,  or  imposing  liability  or  standards  of  conduct  concerning,  any 
hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material. 

9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner and 
Contractor concerning the Work. 

10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents” in the 
Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract.   

11. Construction  Contract  Price—The  money  that  Owner  has  agreed  to  pay  Contractor  for 
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

12. Construction Contract Times—The number of days or  the dates by which Contractor shall:  
(a)  achieve  milestones,  if  any,  in  the  Construction  Contract;  (b) achieve  Substantial 
Completion; and (c) complete the Work.  

13. Construction Cost—The  cost  to Owner of  the  construction of  those portions of  the entire 
Project  designed  or  specified  by  or  for  Engineer  under  this  Agreement,  including 
construction  labor,  services,  materials,  equipment,  insurance,  and  bonding  costs,  and 
allowances  for  contingencies.    Construction  Cost  does  not  include  costs  of  services  of 
Engineer  or  other  design  professionals  and  consultants;  cost  of  land  or  rights‐of‐way,  or 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 14 

compensation  for  damages  to  property;  Owner’s  costs  for  legal,  accounting,  insurance 
counseling, or auditing services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection with the 
Project; or the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner. Construction Cost is 
one of the items comprising Total Project Costs. 

14. Constructor—Any  person  or  entity  (not  including  the  Engineer,  its  employees,  agents, 
representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating 
to the Project,  including but not  limited to Contractors, Subcontractors, Suppliers, Owner’s 
work  forces,  utility  companies,  other  contractors,  construction  managers,  testing  firms, 
shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and representatives of any or all of them.  

15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to furnish services with 
respect  to  this Project as Engineer’s  independent professional associates and  consultants; 
subcontractors; or vendors.  

16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction Contract. 

17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, building information 
models, civil integrated management models, and other deliverables, whether in printed or 
electronic  format,  provided  or  furnished  in  appropriate  phases  by  Engineer  to  Owner 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

18. Drawings—That  part  of  the  Construction  Contract Documents  that  graphically  shows  the 
scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.   

19. Effective Date—The date  indicated  in this Agreement on which  it becomes effective, but  if 
no such date  is indicated, the date on which this Agreement  is signed and delivered by the 
last of the parties to sign and deliver. 

20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement. 

21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work 
but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract Times. 

22. Laws  and  Regulations;  Laws  or  Regulations—Any  and  all  applicable  laws,  statutes,  rules, 
regulations,  ordinances,  codes,  and orders of  any  and  all  governmental  bodies,  agencies, 
authorities, and courts having jurisdiction. 

23. Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for which Engineer’s 
services  are  to be  performed.   Unless  indicated otherwise,  this  is  the  same  individual or 
entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning the Project. 

24. Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, and 
others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and start‐up, 
and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement 
are a part. 

25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting  the  completed Project, or  a  specific portion of  the 
completed Project, prepared by Engineer as an Additional Service and based on Contractor’s 
record  copy  of  all  Drawings,  Specifications,  Addenda,  Change  Orders,  Work  Change 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 15 

Directives,  Field  Orders,  and  written  interpretations  and  clarifications,  as  delivered  to 
Engineer and annotated by Contractor to show changes made during construction. 

26. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred directly by Engineer in connection with the 
performing or furnishing of Basic Services and Additional Services for the Project.  

27. Resident  Project  Representative—The  authorized  representative  of  Engineer  assigned  to 
assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase.  As used herein, the term Resident 
Project  Representative  or  “RPR”  includes  any  assistants  or  field  staff  of  Resident  Project 
Representative. The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project Representative, if any, 
are as set forth in Exhibit D.  

28. Samples—Physical  examples  of  materials,  equipment,  or  workmanship  that  are 
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which such 
portion of the Work will be judged. 

29. Shop  Drawings—All  drawings,  diagrams,  illustrations,  schedules,  and  other  data  or 
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted 
by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether approved or 
not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract Documents. 

30. Site—Lands  or  areas  to  be  indicated  in  the  Construction  Contract  Documents  as  being 
furnished by Owner upon which  the Work  is  to be performed,  including rights‐of‐way and 
easements, and such other  lands  furnished by Owner which are designated  for  the use of 
Contractor. 

31. Specifications—The part of  the Construction Contract Documents  that  consists of written 
requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to 
the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the 
Work.  

32. Subcontractor—An  individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any 
other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.  

33. Substantial  Completion—The  time  at  which  the Work  (or  a  specified  part  thereof)  has 
progressed  to  the point where,  in  the opinion of Engineer,  the Work  (or a  specified part 
thereof)  is sufficiently complete,  in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, 
so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is 
intended. The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially completed” as applied to all 
or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof. 

34. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a 
direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment 
to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor. 

35. Total  Project  Costs—The  total  cost  of  planning,  studying,  designing,  constructing,  testing, 
commissioning, and start‐up of the Project, including Construction Cost and all other Project 
labor,  services,  materials,  equipment,  insurance,  and  bonding  costs,  allowances  for 
contingencies, and the total costs of services of Engineer or other design professionals and 
consultants,  together  with  such  other  Project‐related  costs  that  Owner  furnishes  for 



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 16 

inclusion, including but not limited to cost of land, rights‐of‐way, compensation for damages 
to  properties,  Owner’s  costs  for  legal,  accounting,  insurance  counseling,  and  auditing 
services, interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the Project, and the cost 
of other services to be provided by others to Owner.  

36. Work—The entire construction or the various separately  identifiable parts thereof required 
to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents.  Work includes and is the result 
of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such 
construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such 
construction; and may include related services such as testing, start‐up, and commissioning, 
all as required by the Construction Contract Documents. 

37. Work Change Directive—A written directive  to Contractor  issued on or after  the effective 
date  of  the  Construction  Contract,  signed  by  Owner  and  recommended  by  Engineer, 
ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work. 

38. Agency  –  The  Rural Utilities  Service  or  any  designated  representative  of  Rural Utilities 
Service including USDA Rural Development. 

B. Day: 

1. The word  “day” means  a  calendar day of 24 hours measured  from midnight  to  the next 
midnight. 

ARTICLE 8 –  EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

8.01 Exhibits Included: 

A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.  

B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities.  

C. Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.  

D. Exhibit D,  Duties,  Responsibilities  and  Limitations  of  Authority  of  Resident  Project 
Representative.  

E. Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work.  

F. Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit. 

G. Exhibit G, Insurance.  

H. Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution.  

I. Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability.  

J. Exhibit J, Special Provisions.  

K. Exhibit K, Amendment to Owner‐Engineer Agreement. (Not Included)  



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 17 

8.02 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement, (together with the exhibits included above) constitutes the entire agreement 
between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.   This 
Agreement  may  only  be  amended,  supplemented,  modified,  or  canceled  by  a  written 
instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments should be based whenever possible 
on the format of Exhibit K to this Agreement. 

8.03 Designated Representatives 

A. With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific individuals 
to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to be performed 
or  furnished  by  Engineer  and  responsibilities  of  Owner  under  this  Agreement.    Such  an 
individual  shall  have  authority  to  transmit  instructions,  receive  information,  and  render 
decisions  relative  to  this Agreement on behalf of  the  respective party whom  the  individual 
represents.  

8.04 Engineer's Certifications 

A. Engineer  certifies  that  it  has  not  engaged  in  corrupt,  fraudulent,  or  coercive  practices  in 
competing for or in executing the Agreement.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.04: 

1. "corrupt  practice" means  the  offering,  giving,  receiving,  or  soliciting  of  anything  of  value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the Agreement 
execution; 

2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence 
the selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of Owner, or (b) to 
deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or 
their property to influence their participation in the selection process or affect the execution 
of the Agreement. 

8.05 Federal Requirements 

A.   Agency Concurrence. Signature of a duly authorized representative of Agency in the space 
provided on the signature page of EJCDC form E‐500 hereof does not constitute a 

commitment to provide financial assistance or payments hereunder but does signify that 

this Agreement conforms to Agency’s applicable requirements.  This Agreement shall not 

be effective unless the Funding Agency’s designated representative concurs. No 

amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the Funding Agency’s designated 

representative concurs.  

B.   Audit and Access to Records. Owner, Agency, the Comptroller General of the United 

States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, 

documents, papers, and records of the Engineer which are pertinent to the Agreement, 

for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Engineer 

shall maintain all required records for three years after final payment is made and all 

other pending matters are closed.   



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 18 

C.   Restrictions on Lobbying. Engineer and each Consultant shall comply with Restrictions 

on Lobbying if they are recipients of engineering services contracts and subcontracts 

that exceed $100,000 at any tier. If applicable, Engineer must complete a certification 

form on lobbying activities related to a specific Federal loan or grant that is a funding 

source for this Agreement. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has 

not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, or 

an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal 

contract, grant, or any other applicable award. Each tier shall disclose any lobbying with 

non‐Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

Certifications and disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Owner.  

Necessary certification and disclosure forms shall be provided by Owner.   

D.   Suspension and Debarment. Engineer certifies, by signing this Agreement, that neither it 

nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal 

department or agency. Engineer will not contract with any Consultant for this project if 

it or its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal 

department or agency. Necessary certification forms shall be provided by the Owner.  

The Engineer will complete and submit a form AD‐1048, Certification Regarding 

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion ‐ lower tier transactions ‐ 

to the Owner who will forward it the USDA, Rural Development processing office.    

   



 

 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                              Page 19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the  parties  hereto  have  executed  this  Agreement,  the  Effective  Date  of which  is 
indicated on page 1. 
 
Owner:  Moore County    Engineer:  McGill Associates, P.A. 

     
By:                  By:                                                                          

Print name:    Nick Picerno              Print name:  Michael S. Apke, P.E. 

Title:     Board Chairman              Title:  Principal 

Date Signed:                   Date Signed:                

     
  Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):  

C‐0459 

  State of:  North Carolina 

     
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:    Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 
Post Office Box 905    5 Regional Circle, Suite A 

Carthage, North Carolina 28327    Pinehurst, North Carolina 28374 

     
Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A):    Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A): 
Randy Gould, P.E.    Michael S. Apke, P.E. 

Title:  Public Works Director     Title:  Principal 

Phone Number:  910‐947.6315    Phone Number:  910‐295‐3159 

E‐Mail Address:  rgould@moorecountync.gov    E‐Mail Address:  mike.apke@mcgillengineers.com 

 
 
 

 
 
This instrument has been pre‐audited                                                 
in the manner required by the "Local  
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act". 

    

________________________________  

  Signature 

________________________________  

  Title 

       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 1 

 
This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of [ 18 ] pages, referred 
to  in  and  part  of  the Agreement  between Owner 
and  Engineer  for  Professional  Services                     
dated                                                         .                                                
 

Engineer’s Services 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.   
 
Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below. 
 
PART 1 – BASIC SERVICES 

A1.01 Study and Report Phase 

A. Engineer shall: 

1. Consult with Owner  to define and  clarify Owner’s  requirements  for  the Project,  including 
design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, 
and expandability, and any budgetary  limitations, and  identify available data,  information, 
reports, facilities plans, and site evaluations.   

a. If Owner  has  already  identified  one  or more  potential  solutions  to meet  its  Project 
requirements, then proceed with the study and evaluation of such potential solutions.  

b. If Owner has not  identified specific potential solutions  for study and evaluation,  then 
assist  Owner  in  determining  whether  Owner’s  requirements,  and  available  data, 
reports, plans, and evaluations, point to a single potential solution for Engineer’s study 
and evaluation, or are such that it will be necessary for Engineer to identify, study, and 
evaluate multiple potential solutions.  In addition, Engineer must  identify, study, and 
evaluate  multiple  potential  alternative  solutions  potentially  available  to  Owner, 
unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree with Agency concurrence  that only one 
feasible solution exists.  The number of alternative solutions should be appropriate to 
the specific project as concurred in by the Agency. 

c. If  it  is  necessary  for  Engineer  to  identify,  study,  and  evaluate  multiple  potential 
solutions,  then  identify  [        ]  [insert  specific number] alternative  solutions potentially 
available to Owner, unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree that some other specific 
number of alternatives should be identified, studied, and evaluated. 

2. Identify potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements, as needed. 

3.  Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements.  

4. Visit  the Site, or potential Project  sites,  to  review existing  conditions and  facilities, unless 
such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and Report 
Phase.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 2 

5. Advise Owner  of  any  need  for Owner  to  obtain,  furnish,  or  otherwise make  available  to 
Engineer additional Project‐related data and information, for  Engineer’s use in the study and 
evaluation of potential  solution(s)  to Owner’s Project  requirements, and preparation of  a 
related report. 

6. After  consultation with Owner,  recommend  to Owner  the  solution(s) which  in  Engineer’s 
judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Project. 

7. Identify,  consult  with,  and  analyze  requirements  of  governmental  authorities  having 
jurisdiction to approve the portions of the Project to be designed or specified by Engineer, 
including but not  limited to mitigating measures  identified  in an environmental assessment 
for the Project. 

8.  Prepare  a  report  (the  “Report”)  which  will,  as  appropriate,  contain  schematic  layouts, 
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the agreed‐to 
requirements, considerations  involved, and Engineer’s  recommended  solution(s). For each 
recommended  solution  Engineer  will  provide  the  following,  which  will  be  separately 
itemized:   opinion of probable Construction Cost; proposed allowances  for  contingencies; 
the  estimated  total  costs  of  design,  professional,  and  related  services  to  be  provided  by 
Engineer  and  its  Consultants;  and,  on  the  basis  of  information  furnished  by  Owner,  a 
tabulation of other  items and services  included within the definition of Total Project Costs. 
The  Report  mentioned  in  paragraph  1.01.A.8  of  Exhibit  A  to  the  Agreement  is  the 
Preliminary Engineering Report as defined  in RUS Bulletin 1780‐2.   This document must 
meet customary professional standards as required by 7 CFR 1780.55.  The Report must be 
concurred in by the Agency. 

9. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to provide data or services of the types described  in 
Exhibit B,  for  use  in  Project  design,  or  in  preparation  for  Contractor  selection  and 
construction.   

10. When mutually agreed and approved by the Agency, assist Owner in evaluating the possible 
use of building information modeling; civil integrated management; geotechnical baselining 
of subsurface site conditions;  innovative design, contracting, or procurement strategies; or 
other  strategies,  technologies, or  techniques  for assisting  in  the design,  construction, and 
operation of Owner’s facilities.  The subject matter of this paragraph shall be referred to in 
Exhibit A and B as “Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques.” 

11. If requested to do so by Owner, assist Owner in identifying opportunities for enhancing the 
sustainability of the Project, and pursuant to Owner’s  instructions plan for the  inclusion of 
sustainable features in the design.  

12. Use ASCE 38,  “Standard Guideline  for  the Collection and Depiction of Existing  Subsurface 
Utility  Data”  as  a means  to  advise  the  Owner  on  a  recommended  scope  of  work  and 
procedure for the identification and mapping of existing utilities.  

13. Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any topographic and other surveys necessary 
for design. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 3 

14. Perform or provide the following other Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables:        

a. Provide an Environmental Report as defined at 7 CFR 1794 and RD Instruction 1970‐C 
or other Agency approved format.   The Environmental Report must be concurred  in 
by the Agency. 

b. Assemble all materials necessary to prepare a complete USDA grant application with 
related  attachments  for  submittal  to  USDA  for  approval  with  the  Preliminary 
Engineering Report and Environmental Report.   The application will be provided  to 
the  Owner  for  review  prior  to  submittal  to  USDA,  and  shall  include  all  required 
federal  forms,  assurances,  and  certifications  for  the  pre‐application  and  final 
application.    Engineer  shall  also  represent  the  Owner while working with  federal 
officials to complete the project application for consideration, and work closely with 
the Owner  to gather all data and necessary signatures.   Engineer shall also provide 
the Owner with documents that require Board action and approval.     

15. Furnish [ 1 ] review copies of the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables 
to Owner within [ 60 ] days of the Effective Date and review  it with Owner.   Within  [ 30  ] 
days  of  receipt,  Owner  shall  submit  to  Engineer  any  comments  regarding  the  furnished 
items. 

16. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables in response to Owner’s 
comments, as appropriate, and furnish [    ] copies of the revised Report and any other Study 
and  Report  Phase  deliverables  to  the  Owner  within  [        ]  days  of  receipt  of  Owner’s 
comments.  Revise  the  Report  and  any  other  Study  and  Report  Phase  deliverables  in 
response  to  Owner’s  and  Agency’s  comments,  as  appropriate,  and  furnish  three  (3)  
written copies and one (1) electronic copy of the revised Report and any other Study and 
Report  Phase  deliverables  to  the Owner within  [  30  ]  days  of  receipt  of Owner’s  and 
Agency’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on the date 
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables. 

A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner and concurrence by Agency of the Report and any other Study and 
Report Phase deliverables; selection by Owner of a recommended solution; issuance by Owner of 
any instructions of for use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, or for inclusion of 
sustainable  features  in  the  design;  and  indication  by  Owner  of  any  specific modifications  or 
changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the Project desired by Owner, 
(1)  Engineer  and  Owner  shall  discuss  and  resolve  any  necessary  revisions  to  Engineer’s 
compensation (through application of the provisions regarding Additional Services, or otherwise), 
or  the  time  for completion of Engineer’s  services,  resulting  from  the  selected  solution,  related 
Project  Strategies,  Technologies,  or  Techniques,    sustainable  design  instructions,  or  specific 
modifications to the Project, and (2) upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:  

1. Prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria, preliminary 
drawings, outline specifications, and written descriptions of the Project.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 4 

2. In preparing  the Preliminary Design Phase documents, use  any  specific  applicable Project 
Strategies,  Technologies,  and  Techniques  authorized  by  Owner  and  Agency  during  or 
following  the  Study  and  Report  Phase,  and  include  sustainable  features,  as  appropriate, 
pursuant to Owner’s instructions. 

3. Provide necessary  field  surveys and  topographic and utility mapping  for Engineer’s design 
purposes.  Comply with the scope of work and procedure for the identification and mapping 
of  existing  utilities  selected  and  authorized  by Owner  pursuant  to  advice  from  Engineer 
based  on  ASCE  38,  “Standard  Guideline  for  the  Collection  and  Depiction  of  Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data,”  as  set  forth  in Paragraph A1.01.A.12  above.  If no  such  scope of 
work  and  procedure  for  utility  mapping  has  been  selected  and  authorized,  then  at  a 
minimum  the utility mapping will  include Engineer contacting utility owners and obtaining 
available information. 

4. Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase documents. 

5. Advise Owner  if additional reports, data,  information, or services of the types described  in 
Exhibit B  are  necessary  and  assist Owner  in obtaining  such  reports,  data,  information, or 
services. 

6. Continue to assist Owner with Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that Owner 
has chosen to implement. 

7. Based on the  information contained  in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, prepare a 
revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and assist Owner  in  tabulating  the various 
cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

8. Obtain  and  review  Owner’s  instructions  regarding  Owner’s  procurement  of  construction 
services  (including  instructions  regarding  advertisements  for  bids,  instructions  to  bidders, 
and  requests  for  proposals,  as  applicable),  Owner’s  construction  contract  practices  and 
requirements,  insurance  and  bonding  requirements,  electronic  transmittals  during 
construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding‐related 
documents  (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
Construction  Contract Documents.  Also  obtain  and  review  copies  of Owner’s  design  and 
construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C‐
700,  Standard  General  Conditions  of  the  Construction  Contract,  2013  Edition), 
supplementary conditions, text, and related documents or content for Engineer to include in 
the  draft  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for  proposals  or  other  construction 
procurement  documents),  and  in  the  draft  Construction  Contract  Documents,  when 
applicable.   Engineer must also incorporate all Agency regulations, forms, and design and 
construction  standards  applicable  to  the  project  in  development  of  the  documents 
indicated in this Article. 

9. Perform  or  provide  the  following  other  Preliminary  Design  Phase  tasks  or  deliverables:            
[ NONE ]. 

10. Furnish [ 1 ] review copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable 
Construction  Cost,  and  any  other  Preliminary Design  Phase  deliverables  to Owner within        
[  120  ]  days  of  authorization  to  proceed with  this  phase,  and  review  them with Owner.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 5 

Within [ 30 ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding the 
furnished items.  

11. Revise the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable Construction Cost, and 
any  other  Preliminary  Design  Phase  deliverables  in  response  to  Owner’s  comments,  as 
appropriate,  and  furnish  to  Owner  [  1  ]  copies  of  the  revised  Preliminary  Design  Phase 
documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other deliverables within 
[ 30 ] days after receipt of Owner’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised 
opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables.  

A1.03 Final Design Phase 

A. After  acceptance  by  Owner  of  the  Preliminary  Design  Phase  documents,  revised  opinion  of 
probable  Construction  Cost  as  determined  in  the  Preliminary  Design  Phase,  and  any  other 
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables, subject to any Owner‐directed modifications or changes in 
the  scope,  extent,  character,  or  design  requirements  of  or  for  the  Project,  and  upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of the 
Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. 

2. Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications. 

3. Provide  technical  criteria, written  descriptions,  and  design  data  for Owner’s  use  in  filing 
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to 
review or approve the final design; assist Owner in consultations with such authorities; and 
revise  the Drawings  and  Specifications  in  response  to directives  from  such authorities, as 
appropriate. 

4. Advise Owner of any  recommended adjustments  to  the opinion of probable Construction 
Cost. 

5. After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction Contract Documents any specific 
protocols  for  the  transmittal  of  Project‐related  correspondence,  documents,  text,  data, 
drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or 
through  access  to  a  secure  Project  website.  Any  such  protocols  shall  be  applicable  to 
transmittals between and among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor during the Construction 
Phase  and  Post‐Construction  Phase,  and  unless  agreed  otherwise  shall  supersede  any 
conflicting protocols previously established for transmittals between Owner and Engineer. 

6. Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in identifying 
the  technical  data  contained  in  such  reports  and  drawings  upon which  bidders  or  other 
prospective contractors may rely. 

7. In  addition  to  preparing  the  final  Drawings  and  Specifications,  assemble  drafts  of  other 
Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms, text, or 
content  received from Owner. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 6 

8. Prepare or  assemble draft bidding‐related documents  (or  requests  for proposals or other 
construction  procurement  documents),  based  on  the  specific  bidding  or  procurement‐
related instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner. 

9. Perform  or  provide  the  following  other  Final  Design  Phase  tasks  or  deliverables:      The 
Engineer shall  identify  the building codes, and accessibility standards used  in  the design 
and  indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that final drawings and 
specifications, comply with those standards.   

10.  Furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel, and Agency and other advisors, [  1  ] copies 
of  the  final Drawings  and  Specifications,  assembled drafts of other Construction Contract 
Documents,  the  draft  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for  proposals  or  other 
construction  procurement  documents),  and  any  other  Final  Design  Phase  deliverables, 
within [  60  ] days of authorization to proceed with the Final Design Phase, and review them 
with Owner. Within  [ 30  ] days of  receipt, Owner shall submit  to Engineer any comments 
regarding the furnished items, and any instructions for revisions. 

11. Revise  the  final  Drawings  and  Specifications,  assembled  drafts  of  other  Construction 
Contract  Documents,  the  draft  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for  proposals  or 
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase deliverables 
in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as appropriate, and submit  
[  1  ] final copies of such documents to Owner within [  60  ] days after receipt of Owner’s 
comments and instructions. 

12. Provide  the Owner  and Agency with  a written  certification  that  the  final Drawings and 
Specifications,  other  assembled  Construction  Contract  Documents,  bidding‐related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
any other Final Design Phase deliverables comply with all  requirements of Agency.   Use 
the  Engineer’s  Certificate  of  Final  Plans  and  Specifications  (Attachment  GC‐B)  for  this 
purpose. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when 
Engineer  has  delivered  to  Owner  the  final  Drawings  and  Specifications,  other  assembled 
Construction Contract Documents, bidding‐related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction  procurement  documents),  and  all  final  design  phase  deliverables  have  been 
accepted by Owner. 

C. In  the event  that  the Work designed or  specified by Engineer  is  to be performed or  furnished 
under more  than one prime  contract, or  if Engineer’s  services are  to be  separately  sequenced 
with the work of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast‐tracking), Owner and 
Engineer  shall,  prior  to  commencement  of  the  Final  Design  Phase,  develop  a  schedule  for 
performance of Engineer’s services during the Final Design, Bidding or Negotiating, Construction, 
and Post‐Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly such services as are 
applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts.  This schedule is to be prepared and 
included in or become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or not the work under such contracts 
is to proceed concurrently. 

D. The  number  of  prime  contracts  for Work  designed  or  specified  by  Engineer  upon which  the 
Engineer’s  compensation  has  been  established  under  this Agreement  is  [  1  ].    If more  prime 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 7 

contracts are awarded, Engineer  shall be entitled  to an equitable  increase  in  its compensation 
under this Agreement. 

A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner of the final Drawings and Specifications, other Construction Contract 
Documents,  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for  proposals  or  other  construction 
procurement  documents),  and  the  most  recent  opinion  of  probable  Construction  Cost  as 
determined  in  the  Final Design  Phase,  and  upon written  authorization  by Owner  to  proceed, 
Engineer shall: 

1. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist Owner in 
issuing  assembled  design,  contract,  and  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents)  to prospective contractors, and, 
where applicable, maintain a  record of prospective  contractors  to which documents have 
been issued, attend pre‐bid conferences, if any, and receive and process contractor deposits 
or charges for the issued documents. 

2. Prepare  and  issue  Addenda  as  appropriate  to  clarify,  correct,  or  change  the  issued 
documents.  Obtain  Agency  concurrence  on  any  addenda  that  modify  the  bidding 
documents.  Obtain prior concurrence where possible. 

3. Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of proposals 
or negotiations with prospective contractors. 

4. Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors. 

5.  Consult  with  Owner  as  to  the  qualifications  of  subcontractors,  suppliers,  and  other 
individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the Work 
as to which review of qualifications is required by the issued documents.  

6. If the issued documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability 
of "or equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by prospective contractors, 
provided that such proposals are allowed by the bidding‐related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents) prior to award of contracts for the 
Work. Services under this paragraph are subject to the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of 
this Exhibit A.  The Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability of “or equals” 
and  substitute materials  and  equipment  proposed  by  prospective  contractors  prior  to 
award of  contracts  for  the Work.   Engineer  shall  issue  a bid addendum  for  any  and  all 
approved “or equals” and substitutes.   Review of substitutes and “or equals” shall be  in 
accordance  with  the  General  Conditions  of  the  Construction  Contract  and  applicable 
Agency  regulations.    Services  under  this  paragraph  are  subject  to  the  provisions  of 
Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. 

7. Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and assist 
Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for execution 
by Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts. 

8. If Owner engages  in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with  respect  to 
technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 8 

9. Perform or provide the  following other Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or deliverables: 
Upon  award  of  the  construction  contract,  the  Engineer  shall  furnish  to Owner  five  (5) 
executed  copies  of  the  Contract  Documents  and  one  electronic  copy  of  the  signed 
documents, including drawings and specifications. 

B. The  Bidding  or  Negotiating  Phase  will  be  considered  complete  upon  commencement  of  the 
Construction  Phase  or  upon  cessation  of  negotiations with  prospective  contractors  (except  as 
may be required if Exhibit F is a part of this Agreement). 

A1.05 Construction Phase 

A. Upon  successful  completion  of  the  Bidding  and  Negotiating  Phase,  and  upon  written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. General Administration of Construction Contract:   Consult with Owner and act as Owner’s 
representative as provided  in the Construction Contract.   The extent and  limitations of the 
duties,  responsibilities,  and  authority  of  Engineer  shall  be  as  assigned  in  EJCDC®  C‐700, 
Standard General Conditions of  the Construction Contract  (2013 Edition), prepared by  the 
Engineers  Joint Contract Documents Committee, or other  construction general  conditions 
specified  in  this  Agreement.  If  Owner,  or  Owner  and  Contractor,  modify  the  duties, 
responsibilities,  and  authority  of  Engineer  in  the  Construction  Contract,  or modify  other 
terms of  the Construction Contract having a direct bearing on Engineer,  then Owner shall 
compensate Engineer  for any  related  increases  in  the  cost  to provide Construction Phase 
services. Engineer shall not be required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s 
responsibilities as a  licensed professional. All of Owner’s  instructions  to Contractor will be 
issued  through Engineer, which shall have authority  to act on behalf of Owner  in dealings 
with Contractor  to  the  extent provided  in  this Agreement  and  the Construction Contract 
except as otherwise provided in writing. 

2. Resident Project Representative (RPR):  Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist the 
Engineer  and  to  provide  more  extensive  observation  of  Contractor’s  work.    Duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D.  The furnishing of such 
RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or authority except 
as expressly set forth in Exhibit D. 

3. Selection  of  Independent  Testing  Laboratory:    Assist  Owner  in  the  selection  of  an 
independent  testing  laboratory  to  perform  the  services  identified  in  Exhibit  B,  Paragraph 
B2.01. 

4. Pre‐Construction Conference:  Participate in and chair a pre‐construction conference prior to 
commencement of Work at the Site. 

5. Electronic  Transmittal  Protocols:    If  the  Construction  Contract Documents  do  not  specify 
protocols  for  the  transmittal  of  Project‐related  correspondence,  documents,  text,  data, 
drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or 
through access to a secure Project website, then together with Owner and Contractor jointly 
develop  such  protocols  for  transmittals  between  and  among  Owner,  Contractor,  and 
Engineer during the Construction Phase and Post‐Construction Phase. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 9 

6. Original Documents:    If  requested by Owner  to do  so, maintain and  safeguard during  the 
Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction Contract 
Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other 
design professionals  in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.   Throughout  the 
Construction Phase, make such original printed record version of the Construction Contract 
Documents available to Contractor and Owner for review. 

7. Schedules:   Receive,  review, and determine  the acceptability of any and all schedules  that 
Contractor  is required to submit  to Engineer,  including the Progress Schedule, Schedule of 
Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

8. Baselines and Benchmarks:  As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating 
the Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed. 

9. Visits  to  Site  and  Observation  of  Construction:    In  connection  with  observations  of 
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress: 

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, as 
Engineer  deems  necessary,  to  observe  as  an  experienced  and  qualified  design 
professional the progress of Contractor’s executed Work.  Such visits and observations 
by Engineer, and  the Resident Project Representative,  if any, are not  intended  to be 
exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Work or to involve detailed inspections 
of  the  Work  beyond  the  responsibilities  specifically  assigned  to  Engineer  in  this 
Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather are to be  limited to 
spot  checking,  selective  sampling, and  similar methods of general observation of  the 
Work  based  on  Engineer’s  exercise  of  professional  judgment,  as  assisted  by  the 
Resident Project Representative,  if  any.   Based on  information obtained during  such 
visits and observations, Engineer will determine in general if the Work is proceeding in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner 
informed of the progress of the Work. 

b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident Project 
Representative,  if any, at  the Site, will be  to enable Engineer  to better  carry out  the 
duties  and  responsibilities  assigned  to  and  undertaken  by  Engineer  during  the 
Construction  Phase,  and,  in  addition,  by  the  exercise  of  Engineer’s  efforts  as  an 
experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner a greater degree of 
confidence  that  the  completed  Work  will  conform  in  general  to  the  Construction 
Contract  Documents  and  that  Contractor  has  implemented  and  maintained  the 
integrity  of  the  design  concept  of  the  completed  Project  as  a  functioning whole  as 
indicated in the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer shall not, during such visits 
or as a result of such observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over 
the  Work,  nor  shall  Engineer  have  authority  over  or  responsibility  for  the  means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any 
Constructor,  for  security  or  safety  at  the  Site,  for  safety  precautions  and  programs 
incident to any Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ 
work  or  schedules,  nor  for  any  failure  of  any  Constructor  to  comply with  Laws  and 
Regulations applicable to  furnishing and performing of its work.  Accordingly, Engineer 
neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for 
any Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.   



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 10 

c. The visits described  in Article A1.05.A9a shall be at  least monthly and  the Engineer 
shall  document  all  visits  to  the  project  with  copies  furnished  to  the  Owner  and 
Agency. 

10. Defective Work:   Reject Work  if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer believes 
that  such Work  is defective under  the  terms  and  standards  set  forth  in  the Construction 
Contract  Documents.  Provide  recommendations  to  Owner  regarding whether  Contractor 
should  correct  such Work  or  remove  and  replace  such Work,  or whether Owner  should 
consider accepting such Work as provided in the Construction Contract Documents. 

11. Compatibility with Design Concept:  If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific part  of 
the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth  in the Construction 
Contract  Documents  is  nonetheless  not  compatible  with    the  design  concept  of  the 
completed Project as a functioning whole,   then  inform Owner of such  incompatibility, and 
provide recommendations for addressing such Work. 

12. Clarifications  and  Interpretations:    Accept  from  Contractor  and  Owner  submittal  of  all 
matters  in question concerning the requirements of  the Construction Contract Documents 
(sometimes  referred  to as  requests  for  information or  interpretation—RFIs), or  relating  to 
the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. With reasonable 
promptness,  render  a  written  clarification,  interpretation,  or  decision  on  the  issue 
submitted,  or  initiate  an  amendment  or  supplement  to  the  Construction  Contract 
Documents.  

13. Non‐reviewable  Matters:    If  a  submitted  matter  in  question  concerns  the  Engineer’s 
performance  of  its  duties  and  obligations,  or  terms  and  conditions  of  the  Construction 
Contract Documents  that do not  involve  (1)  the performance or acceptability of  the Work 
under  the Construction Contract Documents,  (2)  the design  (as  set  forth  in  the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise), or  (3) other engineering or  technical matters,  then Engineer 
will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer will not provide a 
decision or interpretation. 

14.  Field Orders:   Subject to any  limitations  in the Construction Contract Documents, Engineer 
may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work. 

15. Change Orders and Work Change Directives:  Recommend Change Orders and Work Change 
Directives  to  Owner,  as  appropriate,  and  prepare  Change  Orders  and  Work  Change 
Directives as required. 

16. Differing Site Conditions:  Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site conditions, 
including  conditions  relating  to  underground  facilities  such  as  utilities,  and  hazardous 
environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations for Owner’s use. 

17. Shop  Drawings,  Samples,  and  Other  Submittals:    Review  and  approve  or  take  other 
appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples,  and other required Contractor 
submittals,  but  only  for  conformance  with  the  information  given  in  the  Construction 
Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole as indicated by the Construction Contract Documents.  Such reviews and 
approvals  or  other  action will  not  extend  to means, methods,  techniques,  sequences,  or 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 11 

procedures  of  construction  or  to  safety  precautions  and  programs  incident  thereto.  
Engineer shall meet any Contractor’s submittal schedule that Engineer has accepted. 

18. Substitutes and “Or‐equal”:   Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or “or‐
equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but  subject  to  the provisions of 
Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of  this Exhibit A.   Review of  substitutes and  “or equals”  shall be  in 
accordance  with  the  General  Conditions  of  the  Construction  Contract  and  applicable 
Agency regulations.  

19. Inspections and Tests: 

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by Laws 
and Regulations or  the Construction Contract Documents.   Engineer’s  review of  such 
certificates will  be  for  the  purpose  of  determining  that  the  results  certified  indicate 
compliance  with  the  Construction  Contract  Documents  and  will  not  constitute  an 
independent evaluation  that  the  content or procedures of  such  inspections,  tests, or 
approvals  comply  with  the  requirements  of  the  Construction  Contract  Documents.  
Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such inspections and tests. 

b. As deemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that  is to be 
inspected, tested, or approved.  

c. Pursuant  to  the  terms  of  the  Construction  Contract,  require  special  inspections  or 
testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

20. Change Proposals and Claims:   (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals.   Review each 
duly  submitted Change Proposal  from Contractor and, within 30 days after  receipt of  the 
Contractor’s supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve it in whole, 
or  deny  it  in  part  and  approve  it  in  part.    Such  actions  shall  be  in writing, with  a  copy 
provided to Owner and Contractor.  If the Change Proposal does not  involve the design  (as 
set  forth  in  the Drawings,  Specifications, or otherwise),  the  acceptability of  the Work, or 
other  engineering  or  technical  matters,  then  Engineer  will  notify  the  parties  that  the 
Engineer will not  resolve  the Change Proposal.    (b) Provide  information or data  to Owner 
regarding engineering or technical matters pertaining to Claims. 

21. Applications for Payment:  Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and qualified 
design  professional  and  on  review  of  Applications  for  Payment  and  accompanying 
supporting documentation: 

a. Determine  the amounts  that Engineer  recommends Contractor be paid. Recommend 
reductions  in  payment  (set‐offs)  based  on  the  provisions  for  set‐offs  stated  in  the 
Construction Contract. Such  recommendations of payment will be  in writing and will 
constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such observations and review, 
that,  to  the best of Engineer’s knowledge,  information and belief, Contractor’s Work 
has progressed  to  the point  indicated,  the Work  is  generally  in  accordance with  the 
Construction  Contract  Documents  (subject  to  an  evaluation  of  the  Work  as  a 
functioning  whole  prior  to  or  upon  Substantial  Completion,  to  the  results  of  any 
subsequent tests called for  in the Construction Contract Documents, and to any other 
qualifications  stated  in  the  recommendation),  and  the  conditions  precedent  to 
Contractor’s being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 12 

is  Engineer’s  responsibility  to  observe  the   Work.    In  the  case  of  unit  price Work, 
Engineer’s recommendations of payment will include final determinations of quantities 
and classifications of the Work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the 
Construction Contract Documents). 

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have represented 
that observations made by Engineer  to  check  the quality or quantity of Contractor’s 
Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect 
of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond 
the  responsibilities  specifically  assigned  to  Engineer  in  this  Agreement.    Neither 
Engineer’s  review of Contractor’s Work  for  the purposes of  recommending payments 
nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment including final payment will impose on 
Engineer  responsibility  to  supervise,  direct,  or  control  the Work,  or  for  the means, 
methods,  techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions 
or programs  incident  thereto, or Contractor’s  compliance with  Laws and Regulations 
applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work.  It will also not impose 
responsibility  on  Engineer  to make  any  examination  to  ascertain  how  or  for  what 
purposes Contractor has used  the money paid  to Contractor by Owner;  to determine 
that title to any portion of the Work,  including materials or equipment, has passed to 
Owner free and clear of any  liens, claims, security  interests, or encumbrances; or that 
there may not be other matters at  issue between Owner and Contractor  that might 
affect the amount that should be paid. 

22. Contractor’s  Completion  Documents:    Receive  from  Contractor,  review,  and  transmit  to 
Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or 
other evidence of  insurance required by the Construction Contract Documents, certificates 
of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples, and other data approved as 
provided under Paragraph A1.05.A.17.   Receive  from Contractor,  review,  and  transmit  to 
Owner  the  annotated  record  documents  which  are  to  be  assembled  by  Contractor  in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents to obtain final payment.  The extent 
of Engineer’s review of record documents shall be to check that Contractor has submitted all 
pages. Receive from Contractor and review the annotated record documents which are to 
be assembled by Contractor  in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents to 
obtain  final  payment.    The  Engineer  shall  prepare  Record  Drawings,  and  furnish  such 
Record Drawings to Owner. 

23. Substantial Completion:  Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the 
entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and Contractor, visit the Site 
to review the Work and determine the status of completion. Follow the procedures  in the 
Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, punch 
list of  items  to be completed, Owner’s objections, notice  to Contractor, and  issuance of a 
final  certificate  of  Substantial  Completion.    Assist  Owner  regarding  any  remaining 
engineering or technical matters affecting Owner’s use or occupancy of the Work following 
Substantial Completion. 

24. Other  Tasks:    Perform  or  provide  the  following  other  Construction  Phase  tasks  or 
deliverables.  

a. Upon substantial completion,  the engineer shall provide a copy of  the certificate of 
substantial completion to the Agency. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 13 

25. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work:  Conduct a final visit to the Project to determine if 
the Work  is  complete  and  acceptable  so  that  Engineer may  recommend,  in writing,  final 
payment  to Contractor.   Accompanying  the  recommendation  for  final payment,  Engineer 
shall also provide a notice to Owner and Contractor in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E 
(“Notice of Acceptability of Work”) that the Work is acceptable (subject to the provisions of 
the Notice and Paragraph A1.05.A.21.b)  to  the best of Engineer’s knowledge,  information, 
and  belief,  and  based  on  the  extent  of  the  services  provided  by  Engineer  under  this 
Agreement. 

26. Standards for Certain Construction‐Phase Decisions:  Engineer will render decisions regarding 
the  requirements of  the Construction Contract Documents, and  judge  the acceptability of 
the Work,  pursuant  to  the  specific  procedures  set  forth  in  the  Construction  Contract  for 
initial  interpretations,  Change  Proposals,  and  acceptance  of  the Work.  In  rendering  such 
decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will 
not  be  liable  to  Owner,  Contractor,  or  others  in  connection  with  any  proceedings, 
interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or rendered in good faith. 

B. Duration of Construction Phase:  The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the 
first Construction Contract  for  the Project or any part  thereof and will  terminate upon written 
recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors.  If the Project involves more than 
one prime contract as  indicated  in Paragraph A1.03.D, then Construction Phase services may be 
rendered at different  times  in  respect  to  the  separate  contracts.    Subject  to  the provisions of 
Article  3,  Engineer  shall  be  entitled  to  an  equitable  increase  in  compensation  if  Construction 
Phase services (including Resident Project Representative services,  if any) are required after the 
original date  for  completion  and  readiness  for  final payment of Contractor  as  set  forth  in  the 
Construction Contract. 

A1.06 Post‐Construction Phase 

A. Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post‐Construction Phase, Engineer shall: 

1. Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work,  make 
recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or the need to 
repair of any damage  to  the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner  in consultations and 
discussions  with  Contractor  concerning  correction  of  any  such  defective Work  and  any 
needed repairs. 

2. Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the Construction 
Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work or the repair of 
any damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore subject to correction by 
Contractor. 

3. Perform  or  provide  the  following  other  Post‐Construction  Phase  tasks  or  deliverables:     
[None ]  

B. The Post‐Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and,  if not 
otherwise modified  in this Exhibit A, will terminate twelve months after the commencement of 
the Construction Contract’s correction period. 

 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 14 

A1.07 Income Surveys and CDBG‐I Application 

A. Conduct up to 100  income surveys and prepare Income Survey Questionnaires for portions of 
the service area that appear to have  low‐to‐moderate  income residents to determine specific 
areas that qualify for potential Community Development Block Grant ‐ Infrastructure funding.  

B. Income Survey Questionnaires shall be completed for each surveyed area on the standard form 
published by  the NCDEQ Division of Water  Infrastructure  for Community Development Block 
Grant  –  Infrastructure  Grants,  including  questions  related  to  existing  problems with  septic 
systems in the project area.    

C.  Review the results of the income surveys with representatives from the Owner to determine if 
a competitive application can be generated for an upcoming cycle for Community Development 
Block Grant – Infrastructure funding.  

D. Upon authorization  to proceed by  the Owner, assemble all materials necessary  to prepare a 
complete  CDBG‐I  grant  application  with  related  attachments  for  submittal  to  NCDEQ  for 
approval.    The  application will  be  provided  to  the Owner  for  review  prior  to  submittal  to 
NCDEQ, and shall include all required forms, assurances, and certifications.  Engineer shall also 
represent  the Owner while working with State and Federal officials  to  complete  the project 
application for consideration, and work closely with the Owner to gather all data and necessary 
signatures.   Engineer shall also provide the Owner with documents that require Board action 
and approval.     

 

   



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 15 

PART 2 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A2.01 Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 
 

A. If authorized  in writing by Owner, Engineer shall provide Additional Services of  the  types  listed 
below. These services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by Owner as 
indicated in Exhibit C. 

1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under 
Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in connection with the 
Project;  preparation  or  review  of  environmental  assessments  and  impact  statements  not 
including  the  preparation  of  the  Environmental  Report  defined  under  Basic  Services; 
review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Project of any such 
statements  and  documents  prepared  by  others;  and  assistance  in  obtaining  approvals  of 
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project. 

2. Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests or 
investigations  of  existing  conditions  or  facilities,  or  to  verify  the  accuracy  of  drawings  or 
other information furnished by Owner or others. 

3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions 
of  the  Project  designed  or  specified  by  Engineer,  or  the  Project’s  design  requirements, 
including,  but not  limited  to,  changes  in  size,  complexity, Owner’s  schedule,  character of 
construction,  or method  of  financing;  and  revising  previously  accepted  studies,  reports, 
Drawings,  Specifications,  or  Construction  Contract  Documents  when  such  revisions  are 
required by changes  in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent  to  the Effective Date or 
are due to any other causes beyond Engineer’s control. 

4. Services  resulting  from  Owner’s  request  to  evaluate  additional  Study  and  Report  Phase 
alternative solutions beyond those agreed  to  in Paragraph A1.01.A.1 and 2 but only  if the 
Owner’s request is made after completion of the Study and Report Phase. 

5. Services  required  as  a  result  of  Owner’s  providing  incomplete  or  incorrect  Project 
information to Engineer. 

6. Providing  renderings or models  for Owner’s use,  including  services  in  support of building 
information modeling or civil integrated management. 

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to: 

a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; 

b. the preparation of feasibility studies  (such as those that  include projections of output 
capacity, utility project  rates, project market demand, or project  revenues) and  cash 
flow analyses, provided that such services are based on the engineering and technical 
aspects  of  the  Project,  and  do  not  include  rendering  advice  regarding  municipal 
financial products or the issuance of municipal securities; 

c. preparation of appraisals; 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 16 

d. evaluating processes available  for  licensing, and assisting Owner  in obtaining process 
licensing;  

e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and 

f. audits or  inventories required  in connection with construction performed or furnished 
by Owner. 

8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services. 

9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner retains  Engineer 
to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same.  

10. Providing the following services: 

a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in Paragraph 
A1.03.D. 

b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by contractors 
other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s contract for such 
services. 

11. Services during out‐of‐town travel required of Engineer, other than  for visits to the Site or 
Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit A). 

12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent 
review processes,  including, but not  limited to, construction management, cost estimating, 
project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review requested by Owner; and 
performing  or  furnishing  services  required  to  revise  studies,  reports,  Drawings, 
Specifications, or other documents as a result of such review processes. 

13. Preparing  additional  bidding‐related  documents  (or  requests  for  proposals  or  other 
construction  procurement  documents)  or  Construction  Contract Documents  for  alternate 
bids or cost estimates requested by Owner for the Work or a portion thereof. 

14. Assistance  in  connection  with  bid  protests,  rebidding,  or  renegotiating  contracts  for 
construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance  is required to 
complete services required by Paragraph 5.02.A and Exhibit F. 

15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that  incorporate and  integrate the 
content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor. 

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and readiness 
for  final  payment  of  Contractor,  but  only  if  such  services  increase  the  total  quantity  of 
services to be performed in the Construction Phase, rather than merely shifting performance 
of such services to a later date. 

17. (Deleted) 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 17 

18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site, and 
immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility companies, and 
other reliable sources. 

19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of Record 
Drawing  content obtained  from Contractor, Owner, utility  companies,  and other  sources; 
revise and supplement Record Drawings as needed. 

20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals. 

21. Protracted  or  extensive  assistance  in  refining  and  adjusting  of  Project  equipment  and 
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing). 

22. Assistance  to Owner  in  training Owner’s  staff  to operate and maintain Project equipment 
and systems. 

23. Assistance to Owner  in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the operation 
and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related recordkeeping. 

24. Preparing  to  serve  or  serving  as  a  consultant  or  witness  for  Owner  in  any  litigation, 
arbitration,  lien  or  bond  claim,  or  other  legal  or  administrative  proceeding  involving  the 
Project. 

25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. 

26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform  its work other 
than  as  required  under  Paragraph  A1.05.A.8;  any  type  of  property  surveys  or  related 
engineering  services  needed  for  the  transfer  of  interests  in  real  property;  and  providing 
other special field surveys. 

27. Providing  more  extensive  services  required  to  enable  Engineer  to  issue  notices  or 
certifications requested by Owner. 

28. Extensive  services  required  during  any  correction  period,  or  with  respect  to monitoring 
Contractor’s  compliance  with  warranties  and  guarantees  called  for  in  the  Construction 
Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services). 

29. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for in 
this Agreement. 

A2.02  Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 

A. Engineer shall advise Owner  that Engineer  is commencing  to perform or  furnish  the Additional 
Services of  the  types  listed below.   For  such Additional Services, Engineer need not  request or 
obtain specific advance written authorization  from Owner.   Engineer shall cease performing or 
furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease from Owner. 

1. Services  in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders  to reflect changes 
requested by Owner. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 18 

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of 
substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal”  items; services after the award of 
the Construction Contract in evaluating and determining the acceptability of a proposed "or 
equal" or  substitution which  is  found  to be  inappropriate  for  the Project;  evaluation  and 
determination of  an excessive number of proposed  "or  equals" or  substitutions, whether 
proposed before or after award of the Construction Contract. 

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or 
indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. 

4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any Constituent 
of  Concern  or  items  of  historical  or  cultural  significance,  (b)  emergencies  or  acts  of God 
endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes during construction, 
(d)  a  significant  amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work,  (e)  acceleration of  the 
progress  schedule  involving  services  beyond  normal  working  hours,  or  (f)  default  by 
Contractor. 

5. Services  (other  than Basic Services during  the Post‐Construction Phase)  in connection with 
any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion. 

6. Evaluating  unreasonable  or  frivolous  requests  for  interpretation  or  information  (RFIs), 
Change  Proposals,  or  other  demands  from  Contractor  or  others  in  connection with  the 
Work, or an excessive number of RFIs, Change Proposals, or demands. 

7. Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a result 
of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor. 

8. While  at  the  Site,  compliance  by  Engineer  and  its  staff with  those  terms  of Owner's  or 
Contractor's  safety  program  provided  to  Engineer  subsequent  to  the  Effective  Date  that 
exceed  those normally  required of engineering personnel by  federal, State, or  local safety 
authorities for similar construction sites. 

   



 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                        Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of [ 3 ] pages, referred 
to  in  and  part  of  the Agreement  between Owner 
and  Engineer  for  Professional  Services                      
dated                                         . 

 

Owner’s Responsibilities 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties. 
 
B2.01  In  addition  to  other  responsibilities  of  Owner  as  set  forth  in  this  Agreement,  Owner  shall  at  its 

expense: 
 

A. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Project, 
including  design  objectives  and  constraints,  space,  capacity  and  performance  requirements, 
flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations.  

B. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services (including 
instructions  regarding  advertisements  for  bids,  instructions  to  bidders,  and  requests  for 
proposals, as applicable), Owner’s  construction  contract practices and  requirements,  insurance 
and  bonding  requirements,  electronic  transmittals  during  construction,  and  other  information 
necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding‐related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other  construction  procurement  documents),  and  Construction  Contract Documents.    Furnish 
copies  (or  give  specific  directions  requesting  Engineer  to  use  copies  already  in  Engineer’s 
possession) of all design and construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions 
(if  other  than  EJCDC®  C‐700,  Standard General  Conditions  of  the  Construction  Contract,  2013 
Edition),  supplementary  conditions,  text,  and  related  documents  and  content  for  Engineer  to 
include  in the draft bidding‐related documents  (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and draft Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.  Owner 
shall have responsibility for the final content of (1) such bidding‐related documents (or requests 
for  proposals  or  other  construction  procurement  documents),  and  (2)  those  portions  of  any 
Construction  Contract  other  than  the  design  (as  set  forth  in  the  Drawings,  Specifications,  or 
otherwise),  and  other  engineering  or  technical matters;  and  Owner  shall  seek  the  advice  of 
Owner’s  legal  counsel,  risk managers, and  insurance advisors with  respect  to  the drafting  and 
content of such documents. 

C. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and 
data relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site. 

D. Following  Engineer’s  assessment  of  initially‐available  Project  information  and  data  and  upon 
Engineer’s  request,  obtain,  furnish,  or  otherwise  make  available  (if  necessary  through  title 
searches, or  retention of  specialists or  consultants)  such additional Project‐related  information 
and  data  as  is  reasonably  required  to  enable  Engineer  to  complete  its  Basic  and  Additional 
Services.  Such additional information or data would generally include the following: 

1. Property descriptions. 

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 

3. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 2 

4. Property,  boundary,  easement,  right‐of‐way,  and  other  special  surveys  or  data,  including 
establishing relevant reference points. 

5. Explorations  and  tests  of  subsurface  conditions  at  or  adjacent  to  the  Site;  geotechnical 
reports  and  investigations;  drawings  of  physical  conditions  relating  to  existing  surface  or 
subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys,  laboratory tests and  inspections of 
samples, materials,  and  equipment; with  appropriate  professional  interpretation  of  such 
information or data.  

6. Environmental  assessments,  audits,  investigations,  and  impact  statements,  and  other 
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies  relevant  to  the Project,  the Site, and 
adjacent areas. 

7. Data  or  consultations  as  required  for  the  Project  but  not  otherwise  identified  in  this 
Agreement. 

E. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and private 
property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement. 

F. Recognizing  and  acknowledging  that  Engineer's  services  and  expertise  do  not  include  the 
following services, provide, as required for the Project: 

1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor” services 
as described in Section 975 of the Dodd‐Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection 
Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling services. 

2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires, Contractor 
raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 

3. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor 
has used the money paid. 

G. Provide  the services of an  independent  testing  laboratory to perform all  inspections,  tests, and 
approvals  of  samples,  materials,  and  equipment  required  by  the  Construction  Contract 
Documents (other than those required to be furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to evaluate 
the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their incorporation into 
the Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide Engineer with the findings 
and  reports generated by  testing  laboratories,  including  findings and  reports obtained  from or 
through Contractor. 

H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having  jurisdiction to 
approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews, approvals, 
and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of the Project. 

I. Advise Engineer of the  identity and scope of services of any  independent consultants employed 
by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost 
estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 3 

J. If Owner designates a construction manager or an  individual or entity other than, or  in addition 
to,  Engineer  to  represent  Owner  at  the  Site,  define  and  set  forth  as  an  attachment  to  this 
Exhibit B  the  duties,  responsibilities,  and  limitations  of  authority  of  such  other  party  and  the 
relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 

K. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by Engineer, 
then  designate  a  person  or  entity  to  have  authority  and  responsibility  for  coordinating  the 
activities  among  the  various  prime  Contractors,  and  define  and  set  forth  the  duties, 
responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the relation thereof to 
the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer as an attachment to this Exhibit B that is to 
be mutually agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before such services begin. 

L. Inform Engineer  in writing of any specific  requirements of safety or security programs  that are 
applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 

M. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, 
and  other  documents  presented  by  Engineer  (including  obtaining  advice  of  an  attorney,  risk 
manager,  insurance counselor,  financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors or consultants as 
Owner  deems  appropriate  with  respect  to  such  examination)  and  render  in  writing  timely 
decisions pertaining thereto. 

N. Inform  Engineer  regarding  any  need  for  assistance  in  evaluating  the  possible  use  of  Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A. 

O. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities for 
enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 

P. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications. 

Q. Furnish  to Engineer data as  to Owner’s anticipated costs  for services  to be provided by others 
(including,  but  not  limited  to,  accounting,  bond  and  financial,  independent  cost  estimating, 
insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in collating 
the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

R. Attend  and  participate  in  the  pre‐bid  conference,  bid  opening,  pre‐construction  conferences, 
construction progress and other  job  related meetings, and  Site  visits  to determine  Substantial 
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment.   

S. Authorize  Engineer  to  provide  Additional  Services  as  set  forth  in  Part  2  of  Exhibit  A  of  the 
Agreement, as required. 

T. Perform or provide the following: [None]  

 

   



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC‐1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 1 

This  is  EXHIBIT  C,  consisting  of  [  8  ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner  and  Engineer  for  Professional 
Services dated                                          . 

 
 

Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
COMPENSATION PACKET BC‐1:  Basic Services – Lump Sum 
 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
C2.01 Compensation for Basic Services (other than Resident Project Representative) – Lump Sum Method 

of Payment 
 

A. Owner  shall  pay  Engineer  for  Basic  Services  set  forth  in  Exhibit  A,  except  for  services  of 
Engineer’s Resident Project Representative, if any, as follows: 

1. A  Lump  Sum  amount  of  $26,000  based  on  the  following  estimated  distribution  of 
compensation: 

a. Study and Report Phase – USDA PER  $3,000 

b. Study and Report Phase – USDA Environmental Report  $12,000 

c. Study and Report Phase – USDA Application  $6,000 

d. Income Surveys and CDBG‐I Application    $5,000 

2. Engineer may alter  the distribution of compensation between  individual phases noted 
herein  to be consistent with services actually  rendered, but shall not exceed  the  total 
Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the Owner and Agency. 

3. The Lump Sum includes compensation for Engineer’s services and services of Engineer’s 
Consultants,  if any.   Appropriate amounts have been  incorporated  in the Lump Sum to 
account  for  labor  costs, overhead, profit, expenses  (other  than any expressly allowed 
Reimbursable Expenses), and Consultant charges.  

4. In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner for 
the following Reimbursable Expenses (see Appendix 1 for rates or charges): [N/A] 

5. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer’s services will be based upon 
Engineer’s estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the 
billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses are expressly allowed, Engineer may also bill 
for any such Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the billing period. 

B. Period  of  Service:    The  compensation  amount  stipulated  in  Compensation  Packet  BC‐1  is 
conditioned on  a period of  service not  exceeding  12 months.    If  such period of  service  is 



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC‐1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 2 

extended, the compensation amount for Engineer's services shall be appropriately adjusted 
with concurrence of the Owner and Agency. 

 
   



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet RPR‐2: Resident Project Representative Services— 
 Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                            Page 1 

 

   



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS‐1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

COMPENSATION PACKET AS‐1:   
Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
C2.05  Compensation for Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment 
 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows: 

1. General:  For services of Engineer’s personnel engaged directly on the Project pursuant 
to Paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A, except for services as a consultant or witness 
under Paragraph A2.01.A.20,  (which  if needed shall be separately negotiated based on 
the  nature  of  the  required  consultation  or  testimony)  an  amount  equal  to  the 
cumulative hours  charged  to  the  Project  by  each  class of  Engineer’s  personnel  times 
Standard  Hourly  Rates  for  each  applicable  billing  class  for  all  Additional  Services 
performed  on  the  Project,  plus  related  Reimbursable  Expenses  and  Engineer’s 
Consultant’s charges, if any. 

B. Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For  those Reimbursable Expenses  that are not accounted  for  in  the compensation  for 
Basic  Services  under  Paragraph  C2.01  and  are  directly  related  to  the  provision  of 
Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this 
Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following 
categories:    transportation  (including  mileage),  lodging,  and  subsistence  incidental 
thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; 
toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, 
Drawings,  Specifications,  bidding‐related  or  other  procurement  documents, 
Construction Contract Documents,  and  similar Project‐related  items;  and Consultants’ 
charges. In addition, if authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also 
include expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment. 

3. The  amounts  payable  to  Engineer  for  Reimbursable  Expenses,  if  any,  will  be  the 
Additional Services‐related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, 
plus all  invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable  to such Additional Services, 
the latter multiplied by a factor of [1.1]. 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses  Schedule will be adjusted  annually  (as of  June)  to  reflect 
equitable  changes  in  the  compensation  payable  to  Engineer.    Changes  will  not  be 
effective unless and until concurred in writing by the Owner and Agency.  

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services: 

1. Whenever  Engineer  is  entitled  to  compensation  for  the  charges  of  Engineer’s 
Consultants,  those  charges  shall  be  the  amounts  billed  by  Engineer’s  Consultants  to 
Engineer times a factor of [1.1]. 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS‐1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

2. Factors:    The  external  Reimbursable  Expenses  and  Engineer’s  Consultant’s  Factors 
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the 
administration of such services and costs. 

3. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request, 
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at no cost. 

   



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 1: Reimbursable Expenses Schedule. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This  is  Appendix  1  to  EXHIBIT  C,  consisting  of  [  1  ] 
pages,  referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services             
dated                                                                      . 

 

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 

 

Current agreements for engineering services stipulate that the Reimbursable Expenses are 
subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C. Reimbursable expenses for services 
performed on the date of the  
Agreement are:  
 
Mileage ‐ $0.65 per mile 
 
GPS Equipment ‐ $25.00 per hour 
 
Telephone, reproduction, postage, lodging, and other incidentals shall be a direct charge per 
receipt. 
Associated services required be the project such as soil analysis, biological surveys, 
archaeological surveys, etc. shall be at cost plus ten (10) percent. 
 
   



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 2: Standard Hourly Rates Schedule. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This  is Appendix  2  to  EXHIBIT  C,  consisting  of      

[  1  ]  pages,  referred  to  in  and  part  of  the 
Agreement  between Owner  and  Engineer  for 
Professional Services dated                                   . 

 

Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 
 

A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

1. Standard  Hourly  Rates  are  set  forth  in  this  Appendix 2  to  this  Exhibit  C  and  include 
salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and 
statutory  benefits,  general  and  administrative  overhead,  non‐project  operating  costs, 
and operating margin or profit. 

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Article C2. 

B. Schedule: 

  Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are: 
 

Firm Principal   $        185.00  

Program Services Manager I   $        145.00  

Program Services Manager II   $        160.00  

Senior Project Manager I   $        160.00  

Senior Project Manager II   $        170.00  

Project Manager I   $        140.00  

Project Manager II   $        150.00  

Project Engineer I   $        105.00  

Project Engineer II   $        115.00  

Project Engineer III   $        125.00  

Engineering Associate I   $           85.00  

Engineering Associate II   $           90.00  

Engineering Technician I   $           80.00  

Engineering Technician II   $           90.00  

Engineering Technician III   $         100.00  

Environmental Specialist I   $          80.00 

Environmental Specialist II   $          90.00 

Electrical Engineer I   $        105.00  

Electrical Engineer II   $        115.00  

Electrical Engineer III   $        125.00  

Electrical Engineering Associate I   $           85.00  

Electrical Engineering Associate II   $           90.00  

Electrical Engineering Technician I   $           80.00  

Electrical Engineering Technician II   $           90.00  

Electrical Engineering Technician III   $         100.00  

   

   

CADD Operator I   $          75.00 

CADD Operator II   $           80.00  

CADD Operator III   $           85.00  

Construction Services Manager I   $        120.00  

Construction Services Manager II   $        130.00  

Construction Administrator I   $           90.00  

Construction Administrator II   $         100.00  

Construction Administrator III   $        110.00  

Construction Field Representative I   $           75.00  

Construction Field Representative II   $           80.00  

Construction Field Representative III   $           85.00  

Planner I   $           95.00  

Planner II   $         105.00  

Planner Ill   $         125.00  

Planner IV   $         135.00 

Surveyor I   $           80.00  

Surveyor II   $           90.00  

Surveying Associate I   $           70.00  

Surveying Associate II   $           75.00  

Survey Technician I                                            $           55.00  

Survey Technician II   $           60.00  

Survey Technician Ill   $           65.00  

Administrative Assistant (I‐III)   $           70.00  

Accounting Assistant (I‐II)   $           80.00  

   

   



 

Exhibit D ‐ Resident Project Representative. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 1 

This  is  EXHIBIT D,  consisting  of  [    5    ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer  for Professional 
Services dated                                           . 

 
 

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 

ARTICLE 1 ‐ SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

D1.01  Resident Project Representative 
 

A. Engineer  shall  furnish  a  Resident  Project  Representative  (“RPR”)  to  assist  Engineer  in 
observing progress and quality of the Work.  The RPR may provide full time representation or 
may provide representation to a  lesser degree. RPR  is Engineer’s representative at the Site, 
will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer 
regarding  RPR’s  actions.  Full  time  Resident  Project  Representation  is  required  unless 
requested in writing by the Owner and waived in writing by the Agency. 

B. Through  RPR's  observations  of  the Work,  including  field  checks  of materials  and  installed 
equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Owner against defects 
and  deficiencies  in  the  Work.    However,  Engineer  shall  not,  as  a  result  of  such  RPR 
observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer 
(including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety  at  the  Site,  for  safety  precautions  and  programs  incident  to  the  Work  or  any 
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, 
or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the 
performing and furnishing of  its work.   The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the 
performances of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to 
furnish  and  perform  the  Work,  or  any  portion  of  the  Work,  in  accordance  with  the 
Construction  Contract  Documents.    In  addition,  the  specific  terms  set  forth  in  Exhibit  A, 
Paragraph A1.05, of this Agreement are applicable. 

C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows: 

1. General:    RPR’s  dealings  in matters  pertaining  to  the Work  in  general  shall  be with 
Engineer and Contractor.   RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall only be  through or 
with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor.   RPR shall generally communicate 
with Owner only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer. 

2. Schedules:    Review  the  progress  schedule,  schedule  of  Shop  Drawing  and  Sample 
submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult 
with Engineer concerning acceptability of such schedules. 

3. Conferences and Meetings:   Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction 
conferences,  progress meetings,  job  conferences,  and  other  Project‐related meetings 



 

Exhibit D ‐ Resident Project Representative. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 2 

(but  not  including  Contractor’s  safety  meetings),  and  as  appropriate  prepare  and 
circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

4. Safety  Compliance:    Comply with  Site  safety  programs,  as  they  apply  to  RPR,  and  if 
required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to 
RPR’s own personal safety while at the Site. 

5. Liaison: 

a. Serve  as  Engineer’s  liaison  with  Contractor.    Working  principally  through 
Contractor’s authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information 
regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents. 

b. Assist  Engineer  in  serving  as Owner’s  liaison with  Contractor when  Contractor’s 
operations affect Owner’s on‐Site operations. 

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for 
proper execution of the Work. 

6. Clarifications and Interpretations:   Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters  in 
question  concerning  the  requirements  of  the  Construction  Contract  Documents 
(sometimes referred to as requests for information or  interpretation—RFIs), or relating 
to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to 
Engineer regarding such RFIs. Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations 
of  the  Construction  Contract  Documents  are  needed,  whether  as  the  result  of  a 
Contractor  RFI  or  otherwise.  Transmit  Engineer’s  clarifications,  interpretations,  and 
decisions to Contractor. ,  

7. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor‐approved Shop Drawings.   

b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify Engineer of 
availability of Samples for examination. 

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work 
requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample  submittal,  if RPR believes  that  the  submittal 
has not been received from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or 
Engineer. 

8. Proposed  Modifications:    Consider  and  evaluate  Contractor’s  suggestions  for 
modifications  to  the Drawings or Specifications, and  report such suggestions,  together 
with RPR’s recommendations, if any, to Engineer.  Transmit Engineer’s response (if any) 
to such suggestions to Contractor.  

9. Review of Work; Defective Work: 

a. Report  to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work  is defective 
under the terms and standards set forth  in the Construction Contract Documents, 
and  provide  recommendations  as  to  whether  such Work  should  be  corrected, 



 

Exhibit D ‐ Resident Project Representative. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 3 

removed  and  replaced,  or  accepted  as  provided  in  the  Construction  Contract 
Documents.  

b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms and 
standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but is nonetheless not 
compatible  with  the  design  concept  of  the  completed  Project  as  a  functioning 
whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work. ; and  

c. Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval. 

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start‐ups: 

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems start‐
ups. 

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start‐ups and operating and maintenance 
training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s personnel, and that 
Contractor maintains adequate records thereof. 

c. Observe,  record,  and  report  to  Engineer  appropriate  details  relative  to  the  test 
procedures and systems start‐ups.  

d. Observe whether  Contractor  has  arranged  for  inspections  required  by  Laws  and 
Regulations,  including but not  limited to those to be performed by public or other 
agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. 

e. Accompany  visiting  inspectors  representing  public  or  other  agencies  having 
jurisdiction over  the Work,  record  the  results of  these  inspections, and  report  to 
Engineer. 

11. Records: 

a. Maintain at  the Site orderly  files  for correspondence,  reports of  job conferences, 
copies  of  Construction  Contract  Documents  including  all  Change  Orders,  Field 
Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings  issued subsequent 
to  the  execution  of  the  Construction  Contract,  RFIs,  Engineer’s  clarifications  and 
interpretations  of  the  Construction  Contract  Documents,  progress  reports, 
approved  Shop  Drawing  and  Sample  submittals,  and  other  Project‐related 
documents. 

b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s hours on 
the  Site,  Subcontractors present at  the  Site, weather  conditions, data  relative  to 
questions  of  Change  Orders,  Field  Orders, Work  Change  Directives,  or  changed 
conditions,  Site  visitors,  deliveries  of  equipment  or  materials,  daily  activities, 
decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the 
case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Engineer. 

c. Upon request  from Owner  to Engineer, photograph or video Work  in progress or 
Site conditions. 



 

Exhibit D ‐ Resident Project Representative. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 4 

d. Record  and  maintain  accurate,  up‐to‐date  lists  of  the  names,  addresses,  fax 
numbers,  e‐mail  addresses, websites,  and  telephone  numbers  (including mobile 
numbers) of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and 
equipment. 

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation. 

f. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation 
to Engineer. 

12. Reports: 

a. Furnish  to Engineer periodic  reports  as  required of progress of  the Work and of 
Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing 
and Sample submittals. 

b. Draft  and  recommend  to  Engineer  proposed  Change  Orders,  Work  Change 
Directives, and Field Orders.  Obtain backup material from Contractor. 

c. Furnish  to Engineer and Owner copies of all  inspection,  test, and system start‐up 
reports. 

d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies, 
acts of God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or delay events, damage 
to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any potential differing site 
condition or Constituent of Concern.  

13. Payment Requests:   Review  applications  for  payment with  Contractor  for  compliance 
with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations 
to  Engineer,  noting  particularly  the  relationship  of  the  payment  requested  to  the 
schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site 
but not incorporated in the Work. 

14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals:  During the course of the Work, verify 
that materials  and  equipment  certificates,  operation  and maintenance manuals  and 
other  data  required  by  the  Contract  Documents  to  be  assembled  and  furnished  by 
Contractor  are  applicable  to  the  items  actually  installed  and  in  accordance with  the 
Contract Documents, and have  these documents delivered  to Engineer  for  review and 
forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of  the Work. 

15. Completion: 

a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist in 
the  determination  of  Substantial  Completion,  and  prior  to  the  issuance  of  a 
Certificate  of  Substantial  Completion  submit  a  punch  list  of  observed  items 
requiring completion or correction.   

b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor, 
to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected by Contractor. 



 

Exhibit D ‐ Resident Project Representative. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 5 

c. Observe  whether  all  items  on  the  final  punch  list  have  been  completed  or 
corrected,  and make  recommendations  to  Engineer  concerning  acceptance  and 
issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E). 

D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 

1. Authorize any deviation  from  the Construction Contract Documents or  substitution of 
materials or equipment (including “or‐equal” items). 

2. Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or any 
Constructor. 

4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other 
Constructor.  

5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices, 
precautions, and programs  in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or 
Contractor. 

6. Participate  in  specialized  field or  laboratory  tests or  inspections  conducted off‐site by 
others except as specifically authorized by Engineer. 

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 
   



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 1 

 
 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
PROJECT:   VASS PHASE 2 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 
OWNER:  MOORE COUNTY 
 
CONTRACTOR:   
 
OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:  
 
ENGINEER:  MCGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A. 
 

NOTICE DATE: 

 
To:                 
    Owner   
 
And  To:              
    Contractor 
 
From:                  
    Engineer 
 
The Engineer hereby gives notice  to  the above Owner and Contractor  that Engineer has  recommended 
final payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above 
Construction  Contract  is  acceptable,  expressly  subject  to  the  provisions  of  the  related  Contract 
Documents, the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated                  , and 
the following terms and conditions of this Notice: 
 

 
CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
  The Notice of Acceptability of Work  (“Notice”)  is expressly made subject  to  the  following  terms 
and conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree: 
 

1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 2 

2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer’s professional opinion. 

3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of 
the Notice Date.  

4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer 
has been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project 
(including  observation  of  the  Contractor’s  work)  under  Engineer’s  Agreement  with 
Owner,  and  applies  only  to  facts  that  are  within  Engineer’s  knowledge  or  could 
reasonably  have  been  ascertained  by  Engineer  as  a  result  of  carrying  out  the 
responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Agreement. 

5. This  Notice  is  not  a  guarantee  or  warranty  of  Contractor’s  performance  under  the 
Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related 
Contract Documents,  including but not  limited to defective Work discovered after final 
inspection, nor an assumption of  responsibility  for any  failure of Contractor  to  furnish 
and  perform  the  Work  thereunder  in  accordance  with  the  Construction  Contract 
Documents, or to otherwise comply with  the Construction Contract Documents or  the 
terms of any special guarantees specified therein. 

6. This  Notice  does  not  relieve  Contractor  of  any  surviving  obligations  under  the 
Construction Contract, and  is subject  to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect  to 
completion and final payment. 

 
   

By: 
 
 

   
 
Title: 

 
 
 

   
 
Dated: 

 
 
 

 
   



 

 Exhibit F – Construction Cost Limit. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 1 

This  is  EXHIBIT  F,  consisting  of  [    2    ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer  for Professional 
Services dated                                                  . 

 
Construction Cost Limit   

 
Paragraph 5.02 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
F5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 
 

A. Owner and Engineer hereby agree to a Construction Cost limit in the amount of $2,870,000.            

B. A bidding or negotiating contingency of 10 percent will be added  to any Construction Cost 
limit established. 

C. The acceptance by Owner at any time during Basic Services of a revised opinion of probable 
Construction Cost  in excess of the then‐established Construction Cost  limit will constitute a 
corresponding increase in the Construction Cost limit. 

D. Engineer will be permitted to determine what types and quality of materials, equipment and 
component  systems are  to be  included  in  the Drawings  and  Specifications.   Engineer may 
make reasonable adjustments in the scope, extent, and character of the Project to the extent 
consistent  with  the  Project  requirements  and  sound  engineering  practices,  to  bring  the 
Project within the Construction Cost limit.  Engineer’s determinations on types and quality of 
materials,  equipment,  and  component  systems  to  be  included  in  the  Drawings  and 
Specifications are subject to approval by Agency in accordance with requirements of 7 CFR 
1780, including open and free competition. 

E. If  the  Bidding  or  Negotiating  Phase  has  not  commenced  within  three  months  after 
completion  of  the  Final  Design  Phase,  or  if  industry‐wide  prices  are  changed  because  of 
unusual or unanticipated events affecting the general  level of prices or times of delivery  in 
the  construction  industry,  the  established  Construction  Cost  limit  will  not  be  binding  on 
Engineer.  In such cases, Owner shall consent to an adjustment in the Construction Cost limit 
commensurate with any applicable change  in the general  level of prices  in the construction 
industry between  the date of completion of  the Final Design Phase and  the date on which 
proposals or Bids are sought. 

F. If  the  lowest  bona  fide  proposal  or  Bid  exceeds  the  established  Construction  Cost  limit, 
Owner shall (1) give written approval to increase such Construction Cost limit, or (2) authorize 
negotiating or rebidding  the Project within a reasonable  time,  (3) cooperate  in revising  the 
Project's scope, extent, or character to the extent consistent with the Project’s requirements 
and  with  sound  engineering  practices,  or  (4)  terminate  the  Project.    In  the  case  of  (3), 
Engineer  shall  modify  the  Construction  Contract  Documents  as  necessary  to  bring  the 
Construction  Cost within  the Construction Cost  Limit.   Owner  shall  pay  Engineer’s  cost  to 
provide such modification services,  including  the costs of the services of  its Consultants, all 
overhead  expenses  reasonably  related  thereto,  and  Reimbursable  Expenses,  but  without 
profit to Engineer on account of such services.  The providing of such services will be the limit 
of Engineer’s responsibility  in this regard and, having done so, Engineer shall be entitled to 
payment for services and expenses in accordance with this Agreement and will not otherwise 



 

 Exhibit F – Construction Cost Limit. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                 and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                           Page 2 

be  liable  for  damages  attributable  to  the  lowest  bona  fide  proposal  or  bid  exceeding  the 
established Construction Cost limit. 

   



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This  is  EXHIBIT G,  consisting  of  [    2    ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer  for Professional 
Services dated                                                 . 

 
Insurance 
 
Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
G6.05  Insurance 
 

A. The  limits  of  liability  for  the  insurance  required  by  Paragraph  6.05.A  and  6.05.B  of  the 
Agreement are as follows: 

1. By Engineer: 

a. Workers’ Compensation:    Statutory  

b. Employer’s Liability ‐‐ 

1) Bodily injury, each accident:  $[500,000] 
2) Bodily injury by disease, each employee:  $[500,000] 
3) Bodily injury/disease, aggregate:  $[500,000] 

 
c. General Liability ‐‐ 

1) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $[1,000,000] 
2) General Aggregate:                  $[2,000,000] 

 
d. Excess or Umbrella Liability ‐‐     

1) Per Occurrence:  $[1,000,000] 
2) General Aggregate:  $[1,000,000] 

 
e. Automobile Liability ‐‐Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

  $[1,000,000] 
 

f. Professional Liability – 

1) Each Claim Made  $[2,000,000] 
2) Annual Aggregate  $[2,000,000] 

 
g. Other (specify):               $[N/A ] 

 
2. By Owner: 

a. Workers’ Compensation:    Statutory  



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

b. Employer’s Liability ‐‐ 

1) Bodily injury, Each Accident  $[            ] 
2) Bodily injury by Disease, Each Employee  $[            ] 
3) Bodily injury/Disease, Aggregate   $[            ] 

 
c. General Liability ‐‐ 

1) General Aggregate:                  $[1,000,000] 
2) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $[1,000,000] 

   
 

d. Excess Umbrella Liability 

1) Per Occurrence:  $[            ] 
2) General Aggregate:  $[            ] 

 
e. Automobile Liability – Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

    $[            ] 
 

f. Other (specify):               $[N/A] 

 
B. Additional Insureds: 

1. The following individuals or entities are to be listed on Owner’s general liability policies 
of insurance as additional insureds: 

 
 
a. 

 
 
[None] 

    Engineer 
 
 
b. 

   
 
[None] 

    Engineer’s Consultant 
 
 
c. 

   
 
[None] 

    Engineer’s Consultant 

d.    [         ] 

    [other] 
 

2. During  the  term  of  this  Agreement  the  Engineer  shall  notify  Owner  of  any  other 
Consultant  to be  listed as an additional  insured on Owner’s general  liability policies of 
insurance. 

3. The  Owner  shall  be  listed  on  Engineer’s  general  liability  policy  as  provided  in 
Paragraph 6.05.A. 



 

Exhibit H – Dispute Resolution. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                     Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT H, consisting of [  1  ] pages, referred 
to  in  and  part  of  the Agreement  between Owner 
and  Engineer  for  Professional  Services                      
dated                                                    . 

 
 

Dispute Resolution 

 
Paragraph 6.09 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
H6.08 Dispute Resolution 
 

A. Mediation:   Owner and Engineer agree that they shall first submit any and all unsettled claims, 
counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in question between them arising out of or relating to 
this  Agreement  or  the  breach  thereof  (“Disputes”)  to  mediation  by  a  mutually  agreed‐to 
mediator.  Owner and Engineer agree to participate in the mediation process in good faith.  The 
process shall be conducted on a confidential basis, and shall be completed within 120 days.    If 
such mediation is unsuccessful in resolving a Dispute, then (1) the parties may mutually agree to a 
dispute resolution of their choice, or (2) either party may seek to have the Dispute resolved by a 
court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit I ‐ Dispute Resolution. 
EJCDC® E‐500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                     Page 1 

This  is  EXHIBIT  I,  consisting  of  [  1  ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer  for Professional 
Services dated                                                 .  

 
 

 
This  is  EXHIBIT  J,  consisting  of  [  1  ]  pages, 
referred  to  in  and  part  of  the  Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer  for Professional 
Services dated                                                .  

 
 

Special Provisions 

 
None.

 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/02/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 07/26/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint two members to the Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The terms for members Barbara Venditti and Elizabeth Cunningham expire in August.  Each is 
willing and recommended to serve an additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update records. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Barbara Venditti and Elizabeth Cunningham to the Nursing and Adult 
Care Home Community Advisory Committee for three-year terms expiring August 31, 2019. 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/02/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 07/29/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint member to the Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current term of service for trustee Robert Hayter expires August 31st.  Mr. Hayter has served two 
four-year terms. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update records. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint a member to the Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees for a 
term commencing September 1, 2016 and expiring June 30, 2020. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Appointment Applications 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.



Advisory Board Appointment Application 
 
 
First Name:                       Larry 
 
Last Name:                       Upchurch 
 
Mailing Address:              PO Box 68  High Falls NC 27259 
 
Home Phone:                    910-464-3474 
 
Work/Mobile Phone:        910-783-4493 
  
Email Address:                 lupchurch@rtmc.net 
 
Occupation:                      Retired Educational Administrator 
 
Background Qualifications:          I have been a lifelong resident of Moore County and an 
employee of Moore County Schools.  For 40 years, I worked to better the educational 
opportunities and facilities for our students and our teachers.  Working with Sandhills 
Community College to implement the offering of college courses to our high school students 
was one of the highlights of my tenure as principal and deputy superintendent.  My knowledge 
of the community at large and my understanding of the need to educate all of our students help 
me to bring a perspective that is inclusive and informed.   
 
Please check the following boards/committees on which you are interested in serving:  
Community College Trustees   
 
If you are interested in serving on more than one board/committee, please use the box 
below to number your selections by preference: 
 
 



Advisory Board Appointment Application 
 
 
First Name:                       Kristin 
 
Last Name:                       Richmond 
 
Mailing Address:              104 Lockerbie Court 
 
Home Phone:                    9102952608 
 
Work/Mobile Phone:        9103153689 
  
Email Address:                 krichmond@ttp-usa.com 
 
Occupation:                      Industrial/Organizational Psychologist 
 
Background Qualifications:          Currently leaving the WDB. After gaining perspective and 
insight, it is apparent that more impact can be made at the community college level in concert 
with multiple agency efforts.  As an Organizational Psychologist, I founded and own an 
education support consultancy focused on educational institution systematic development and 
faculty/leader professional development as well as adult active learning and career span 
pathways.  Have insight into community college workings, links to the Moore County 
School/SCC initiatives as well as links to UNC-CH workings through Morehead-Cain Program 
and understand the need for workforce readiness from community college or prep for higher 
learning and how those link.  I would be excited to support SCC with the 23+ years of 
experience I have gained consulting education and training programs/organizations. I am 
interested in getting more involved with SCC. 
 
Please check the following boards/committees on which you are interested in serving:  
Community College Trustees   
 
If you are interested in serving on more than one board/committee, please use the box 
below to number your selections by preference: 
 
 









Advisory Board Appointment Application 
 
 
First Name:                       Brant 
 
Last Name:                       Clifton 
 
Mailing Address:              2702 Wentworth Circle Pinehurst, NC 28374 
 
Home Phone:                    9106903183 
 
Work/Mobile Phone:        9106903183 
  
Email Address:                 bclift76@me.com 
 
Occupation:                      IT support 
 
Background Qualifications:          lifetime dog owner 
current owner of a dog rescued from Moore County shelter 
----------------------------------------------------------------- 
veteran businessman 
experienced adjunct instructor at two community college campuses 
good relations with many Sandhills CC staff  
Moore County resident  
 
Please check the following boards/committees on which you are interested in serving:  
Animal Operations Advisory Board,Citizen's Pet Responsibility,Community College Trustees   
 
If you are interested in serving on more than one board/committee, please use the box 
below to number your selections by preference: 
1. Animal Operations Advisory Board 
2. Citizens Pet Responsibility 
3. Community College trustee 
 


























	AGENDA
	V.A. 7/19/16 MINUTES
	V.B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	V.C. CIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT
	V.D. COURT CAP. PROJ. ORD.
	V.E. FOREST SERVICE CONTRACT
	V.F. PERFORMANCE AUTO AMENDMENT
	V.G. SURPLUS TO SP RESOLUTION
	V.H. SCHOOL NURSE CONTRACT
	V.I. HEALTH BAD DEBT
	V.J. WELL 24 BIDS REJECTION
	VI.A. CALL TO: STAGE RD SOLAR
	VIII.A. SOUTHERN HEALTH AMENDMENT
	VIII.B. ARAMARK AMENDMENT
	VIII.C. RECYCLING CONTRACT
	VIII.D. MCGILL CONTRACT - VASS
	IX.A. APPTS/NURSING CAC
	IX.B. APPTS/COLLEGE



